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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Anniston, Alabama

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Anniston, Alabama (the “City”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of

contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implentation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Anniston City Board of Education, the Public Library of Anniston/Calhoun County, and
the Anniston Museum Endowment Corporation, Inc., which represents 72%, 64% and 99%, respectively, of the assets,
net position and revenue of the component unit’s column, Those financial statements were audited by other auditors
whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
Anniston City Board of Education, the Public Library of Anniston/Calhoun County, and the Anniston Museum
Endowment Corporation, Inc., is based on the reports of the other auditors. We issued a separate audit report dated
February 11, 2015, on the Farley Berman Foundation, Inc., a discretely presented component unit, Also, we issued
a separate audit report dated May 19, 20135, of the financial statements of the Policemen’s and Firemen’s Retirement
Fund, which represents 99%, 100% and 100%, respectively, of the assets, net position and revenues of the fiduciary
funds. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free frorn material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,



the auditor considers the internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

The financial statements of the Anniston Museum League has not been audited, and we were not engaged to audit its
financial statements as part of our audit of the City’s basic financial statements. Anniston Museum League is included
in the City’s basic financial statements as discretely presented component unit and represent less than 1%, less than
1%, and less than 1% of the assets, net position and revenues, respectively, of the City’s aggregate discretely
presented component units,

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors except for the effects of such adjustments, if any,
as might have been determined to be necessary had the Anniston Museum League financial statements been audited,
the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
government activitics, the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for the City of Anniston, Alabama, as of September 30, 2014, and
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Supplementary and Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis (pages 4-14) and budgetary comparison information (pages 21-22) to be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information (pages 58-61) in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and combining fund financial statements, as listed in
the accompanying table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements,



The combining fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements, Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or the basic
financial statement themselves, and other procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The Management's Analysis and Discussion has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 20, 2015, on our
consideration of the City of Anniston, Alabama’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government A uditing Standards
in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance,

rp ¢ Hppwecrtzs (4 P

Kemp & Associates, CPA PC
Anniston, Alabama
May 20, 2015



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR END SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

This section of the City of Anniston’s (*City”) annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the
City's financial performance during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014. We encourage readers to consider
the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the financial
statements and other supplementary information, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflow of resources of the City of Anniston {primary government) exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflow of resources by 74.39 million for the year ended September 30, 2014. The
assets and deferred outflow of resources of the City's component units exceeded their liabilities and
deferred inflow of resources by $25.4 million. Of the $74.39 million in primary government net position,
$.61 million (unassigned net position) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

» At the close of the fiscal year, the City’s govenmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of
$16.89 million. The combined governmental funds fund balance decreased by $ 2.22 miliion compared
with the prior year. Of the $16.89 million in find balance, $5.12 million is available for spending at the
government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

o  The general fund ended the current year with a fund balance of $6.17 million, down from $2.26 million in
2012. The 2014 ending fund balance of the General Fund represents 17.4 percent of to:al general fupnd
operating expenditures.

e In the fiscal year 2014, the City of Anniston realized a deficiency of operational expendilurt.;s OVET Tevenues
in the general fund of ($422,479). However, the fund balance of the General Fund decreased by
($2,264,478) due to net transfers from the general fund to capital projects funds and debt service funds.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Anniston’s basic financial
statements. The basic financial statements consist of three components: 1. Government-wide financial statements,
2. Fund financial statements and 3. Notes to the financial statements (see figure 1). The basic financial statements
present two different views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial
statements, [n addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that
will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the City of Anniston. The following diagram
shows how the required components of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another.
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Required Components of Annual Financial Report
(Figure 1)

] - Basic

Management's Discussion Financial

And Analysis Statements
I | I

Government- Fund Notes to the

wide Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

Summary ’ Detail

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar 1o
those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the government’s assets and
deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. All of the current year's revenues
and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into three categories:

Governmental Activities — Most of the City’s basic services are included here such as the police, fire, public
works, parks and recreation, and general administration. Sales, use and property taxes; charges for
services, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. The Governmental Activities include
Blended Component units,

Discretely Presemted Component units — The City includes other legally separate entities in its report
including the Anniston City Board of Education, Public Library of Anniston/Calhoun County, Farley L
Berman Foundation, Inc., Anniston Museum Endowment Corporation, and Museum League. The City is
financially accountable for these entities.

Blended Component units — The City includes other legally separate entities in its report including the
Public Building Authority and the Museum Store (MusAnn Corporation, Inc). The City provides
administrative services for these entities.
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Government-wide Financial Statements

Governmental Activities and
Component Units

Measurement Focus:
Economic Resources

Accounting Basis; Accrual

Statement of Net Position Statement of Activities
+Assets +General Revenues
+Deferred Outflows -Net Program Expenses
of Resources Change in Net Position
-Liabilities

-Deferred Inflows
of Resources
Net Position

The statement of net position includes all of the government’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources except fiduciary funds. The statement of activities presents information
showing how the government’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
Mows.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds — not the
City as a whole. Funds are accounting groups that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and
spending for particular purposes. Some funds are required by federal or state law while some are required by grant
agreements. Other funds are established to control and manage City resources designated for specific purposes.

The City uses three types of funds:

Governmental Funds — Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus
on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow into and out of the
funds and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Because the focus on
governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may beiter
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions.
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Proprietary Funds — The City of Anniston maintains two types of proprietary fund. An Enterprise fund is
used to report the same functions presented as business-fype activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City of Anniston uses the enterprise funds (Museum Store) to provide support to the
Anniston Museum of Natural History, a department of the City and the Victoria Hotel.

Fiduciary Fund - The fiduciary fund statement reflects the financial relationship with the Policemen’s and
Firemen’s Retirement Fund which provides benefits exclusively for certain public safety employees. This
fund is excluded from the City’s government-wide financial statements because the City cannot use these
assets to finance operations. In 2011, the City began to present the appropriate portion of the municipal
court transactions as an agency fund to delineate the fiduciary nature of those transactions.

The following diagram presents the major features of the fund financial statements including the types of
information contained therein.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds Fiduciary Funds
( ™ (4 ™
Measurement Focus:
Current Financial Measurement Focus.
1] Resources —-{ Economic Resources
Accounting Basis: Accrual Accounting Basis: Accrual
. : =~ \ J
: Balance Sheet | r Ty
Assefs + Deferred Outflow of | W"s:sz t Position
=] Rasources = Liabliitias + !
Deferred Inflow of Resources - ]
& + Fund Balances | -Liabliifes
-Deferred Inflow
ot Resources
\u Net Position 7
p . . -
|__| Revenues - Expenditures Statement of Changes in
+ (=) Other Financing Net Position
SoUrces (LUses) —| Additions - Deductions
= Net %';alggge:" Fund _ = Change in Net Position
\. J . i/

Statement of Revenues,
— Expenditures.and Changes

in Fund Balance
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Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the

government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements follow the basic financial
statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain supplementary
information that should be considered in the evaluation of the City’s financial position.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

The government-wide financial statement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, was the first of a new
format of reports for the City. The accounting year 2004 and subsequent years follow this format. The changes in
the financial stalements are in compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
34. The City has accounted for all infrastructure assets and has included them in this presentation. The following
summarizes the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities for the Primary Government's activities:

Condensed Statement of Net Position
As of September 30, 2014 and 2013

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and other assels $ 21457689 5 23307028 § 414484 0§ 367988 0§ 21872173 0§ 23675016
Capttal assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 103,534,488 106,518,736 683,910 12,919 104,213,198 106.531,655
Total Assets $ 124992177 $ 129825764  $ 1098394 § 380907  § 126,090,571 § 130,206,671
Deferred Qutflows of Resources $ 3299 § 31508 0§ - 8 L 3299 § 3.505
Current and other liabilities § 5438366 § 4324509 0§ 102,126 § 2,780 §$ 5540492 % 4,327 284
Long-term liabilities, net of
current portion 44,277,512 47,133,300 - - 44,277.512 47,133,300
Total Liabalitres $ 49715878 § 51457809 § 102,126 § 2780 5§ 49818004 $§ 514603589
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 1,882,021 $ 2089564 § - 5 - § 1882021 $ 2,139,564
Met Position
Net investment in capital $ 62845714 $ 68208277 § 6RINIC % 12919 § 63529624 § 6R221.196
Restricted 9,600,131 10,549,549 78983 78,983 9679114 10,628,532
Assigned 572,606 572,606 -
Unassigned 379,126 1,748,579 233,375 286,225 612,501 2,034,804

Total Met Positian § 73397577 § 80506405 § 996268 0§ 378,127 % 74595845 S 80.884.532
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Condensed Statement of Activities
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2014 2613 2014 2013 2004 2013

Revenues
Program Revenue

Charges for services $ 3590975 $ 3073699 § 751010 $ 63,185 § 4,341,985 § 3,1368%4

Operating grants and

contributions 1,630,158 1,790,751 - 48,000 1,630,158 1,838,751

Cap grants and contributions 612,814 288,490 612,814 288490
General Revenue

Taxes 28,326,906 29,334,307 28,326,906 29,334,307

Licenses and permits 4,347,745 4,161,137 4,347,745 4,161,137

[nvesiment earnings 134,831 162,835 221 564 135,052 163,399

Other revenues 2,365,712 1,561,050 12,608 586 2,378,320 1,561,636
Total Revenues 41,009,141 40,372,269 763,839 112,335 41,772,980 40,424,604
L:xpenses

General government 10,075,815 9.381,738 10,075,815 9.381,738

Judicial 318,388 297,3%0 318,388 297,390

Public safety 16,118,205 15,036,733 16,118,205 15.036,733

Public works 9,021,367 10,063,393 - - 9,021,367 10,663,393

Housing and development 870,918 1,158,816 870918 1,158,E16

Public facilities 206,501 - - - 206,501 -

Culture and recreation 8,760,790 7,914,729 - - 8,760,790 7,914,729

Interest 1,848,994 1,563,165 1,848,994 1,563,165
Busiress-type activity

Museum Store 53,7132 80,073 53,732 80,073

Victoria Hotel 772,171 - 772,171 -
Total Expenditures 47,220,978 45,415,964 825,903 80,073 48,046,881 45496027
Capital Contribution-other Funds (699,459) 680,206 - {19.253) -
Change in Net Position $(6911,296) $(5.043,695) § 618142 § 32,262 $(6293,154) S(501141%

The assets and deferred outflow of resources of the City of Anniston (primary government) exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflow of resources by $74.4 million as of September 30. 2014. However, the'
largest portion (85.48 percent) reflects the City's investment in capital assets less any related debu still
outstanding that was issued to acquire those assets. The City of Anniston uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to
repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capilal assets cannot be used to liquidate these
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liabilities. Additionally, $10.3 million represents net position that are subject to external or Council placed
restrictions on how they may be used. The balance of $.37 million is unrestricted.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Anniston uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The locus of the City of Anniston’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Anniston’s financing
requirements. Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of
Anniston. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $5,203,214,
compared with $8,221,378 at the end of 2013. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 14.925 percent of
total general fund expenditures at the end of 2014,

General Fund-Fund Balances
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013 Change
Nonspendable £ 304,177 $ 213,097 [ 91,080
Assigned 572,606 - 572,606
Unassigned 5,203,214 8,221,378 (2,928,164)
Total Fund Balances $ 6,169,997 $ 8,434,475 % (2,264,478)

Enterprise Fund

Tiwe City's enterprise fund provides the same type of information found in the gnvernment-wide financial statements,
but in more detail. The net position of the enterprise fund was $996,268, an increase of $618,141. The City has two
enterprise funds, the Museum Store and Victoria Hotel. The City took over operations of the Victoria Hotel on
October 1, 2013 and the City operates the retail store at the Anniston Museum of Natural History.

Enterprise Fund-Net Position
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

2004 2013 Change
Restricted § 78983 § 73983 % E
Unassigned 917,285 299,144 618,141
$ 996,268 § 378,127 § 618,141

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The City of Anniston adopts an annval appropriated budget for its general fund and other funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
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General Budget Fund
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014
Variance

Original Final Actual From Final

Budget Budget Amount Budgel
Revenues % 34,930,835 $ 34,171,770 $ 35,062,355 b 890,585
Expenditures 33,245,360 34,942,438 35,484,834 (542,396}
Other Sources (Uses) (1,684,375) (1,967,378) (1,841,999) (125,379)
Total 5 1,100 $ (2,738,046) § (2,264,478) $ 473,568

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The City of Anniston’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of September
30, 2014 totals $103,534,488 (net of accumulated depreciation) and for its business-type activities as of September
30, 2014 1otals $680,910 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include infrastructure, buildings, land,
machinery and equipment, facilities and vehicles, as well as the collection at the Anniston Museum of Natural
History.

Additional information about the City of Anniston’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

Capital Assets
As of September 30, 2014 and 2013

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities ‘Fotal Primary Government

014 2013 2014 2013 20t4 2013
Lang $ 9305017 $ 8925355 § 125000 $ 9430017 § B925355
Collections 8,377,742 8,349,992 8,377,742 8,349,902
Construction in Progress 1,013,172 - 1,013,172 .
Bwlding and Improvements 64,277,073 64,639,239 580,474 30,884 64.857.547 04,670,123
Machinery and Equipment 13,545,348 13,933,702 39,878 27,924 13,985,226 13,961 626
Improvements other than - -
buildings 3,745,135 3,161,685 3,745,135 3,161,685
Infrastruciure 105,429,666 105,429,666 105,429,666 105,429,666
206,093,153 204,439,639 745,352 58,808 206,838,505 204,498,447

Accumulated Depreciation (102,558,665) {97,913,903) (61,442) (45,889}  (102,620,107) (97,959,792}

Capila! Assets, net $ 103,534,488 § 106,525,736 § 683910 § 12919 $104218395  § 106,538,655

This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and building improvements, improvement other than
buildings, system improvements (drainage and streets), machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways,
bridges, and collections at the Anniston Museum of Natural History. Major capital asset events during the fiscal
year were the completion of the Justin Sollohub Justice Center, and road construction begun on Pappy Dunn Road
located in the McClellan Industrial Park,

Lt
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Long-term Debt: As of September 30, 2014, the City of Anniston had bonds and warrants outstanding of
$37,744,562, of which $31,170,000 is bond debt related to the blended component unit, the City of Anniston Public
Building Authority (the “PBA"). The PBA debts consist entirely of building revenue warrants whose debt service
aobligations are covered by the revenue generated by executed leases on the related buildings. In addition, the City is
participating in regional economic development that specifically funded certain infrastructure at Honda
Manufacturing of Alabama's plant in Lincoln, Alabama, fifteen miles away. The amount outstanding for this
commitment is $276,251.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the City ook advantage of recovery zone interest incentives
offered by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. The maximum stimulus was utilized and general
obligation warrant series 2010B was issued in the amount of $5,380,000, the amount apportioned by the State of
Alabama through Calhoun County. In addition, and at the same time of the 2010B in October, 2010, Series 2010A
was issued in the amount of $2,060,000, which included refinancing Series 1998 warrant principal of $440,000,
thereby liguidating that warrant. The purpose of these combined warrants was to construct a state of the art aquatic
complex capable of generating substantial fees, while closing three antiquated facilities. Approximately $1.2
million of this issuance was dedicated to public works street improvements. The net negative cash flow will be
marginal due to revenues and efficiencies gained.

The City of Anniston created the PBA to facilitate the construction of the Calhoun County Department of Humar
Resources complex on a federally declared Brownfield site, appropriately remediated. The PBA issued a warrant
in February 2011, in the amount of $16,170,000 (DHR Series 2011). The lease payments to satisfy the warrant
debt service will be paid directly by the State of Alabama to Regions Bank, trustee. The building was vccupied
during fiscal year 2013,

In August, 2011, the PBA issued $15,000,000 of revenue warrants for the Justin Sollohub Justice Center. This new
municipal complex houses the municipal court, police department, and municipal jail, replacing a sixty year nld
facility. Alabama law permits the usage of the corrections fund to pay for the court and jail components and it is
anticipated that approximately 65 percent of the debt service, in the form of a lease payment to the PBA will come
from the corrections fund, while the remaining portion of the lease will be paid from the general fund. The building
was occupied during fiscal year 2014,

Cn September 8, 2014, the City issued $ 2,650,000 general obligation warrants (Series 2014-A) to fund road
improvements on Pappy Dunn Boulevard and Iron Mountain Road. In addition, the State of Alabama will pay
approximately $1,400,000 to assist in the project. Also, municipalities located in Calhoun County have commisted
funds to assist the City in the debt service on the $ 2,650,000.
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CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Outstanding Debt and Long Term Liabilities

As of September 30,2014 and 2013

Governmental Activities 2014 2013
Series 2011 DHR $15,610,000 $16,170,000
Series 2011 Justice Center 14,735,000 15,000,000
Recovery Zone 2010 5,380,000 5,380,000
GO Recovery Zone 1,330,000 1,575,000
Series 2014-A McClellan Project 2,650,000 -
Less discounts (395,855) (418,730)
Plus premiums 36,039 38,291
Capital leases 348,104 563,270
Honda assistance 138,498 276,251
OPEB obligations 4,519,227 4,216,151
Compensated absences 2,410,190 2,327,007
£46,761,203 $45,127,240

State statutes limit the general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to twenty percent (20%) of its total
assessed valuation.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

With the closure of Fort McClellan in 1999 along with completion nearing on the Veterans Memorial Parkway that
will connect Interstate 20 to U.S. Highway 43!, Anniston has an opportunity to capitalize on significant
development at the former fort as well as surrounding areas. Commitment to this effort was recently further
cemented by the passage of the McClellan Area Regional Development Compact. This compact forms a partnership
among other local entities in a regional effort to commit resources to achieve development goals at McClellan.

Further capitalizing on the unique landscape of Anniston, the Coldwater Mountain Bike Trail is a 4,000 acre tract of
land owned by the Alabama State Lands Division of the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources. Once
completed, Anniston will be home to one of the premier ride centers in the country offering up to 68 miles of trails
with varying levels of difficulty. Riders are already traveling to the area from all over the country with 25 miles
already in service.

With the completion of the Justin Sollohub Justice Center and the Calhoun County DHR Facility (the debt service
for which is paid by the State of Alabama), the City has added approximately $30 million in assets while helping in
the effort to revitalize the downtown area. Anniston recently designated its downtown as a local historical district.
This will help in attracting new businesses downtown and capitalize on the rapidly expanding bike community.

The City adopted an FY 2015 general fund budget of $34,602,430. The following are a few key factors that were
tuken into account when building the budget:
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»  Using historical trends, revenues were budgeted flat from the FY 2014 projections. The City has and is
preparing to take steps to ensure that enough revenue sources are available 10 cover necessary expenditures,
Some of these steps include:

]

[a]

A comprehensive review of the City's business license ordinance and rate structure was completed
in FY2014, As a result, the City approved an increase in rates that will go into effect in FY2015,
Some of these rates had not been adjusted for more than 50 years,

The City adopted a Stormwater User Fee, which will go into effect in FY2015, to provide an
additional funding source for drainage related operations and capital improvements,

The City will begin collecting a $0.02 per gallon tax on retail gasoline purchases.

e In addition to revenue enhancements, the City considered ways to reduce expenditures without significantly
effecting service levels. These reductions include the following:

o

There will be no cost-of-living adjustments or merit increases in FY20135,

41 full-time positions were eliminated between Police, Fire, Public Works, and Parks and
Recreation. Most of these positions were eliminated through attrition or not filling vacant
pusitions,

Reduced capital equipment purchases in Public Works by $110,000 and deferred purchase of
police cars.

Questions or Comments

Any questions or comments about this document should be addressed to Cory Salley, Finance Director, email:
csalley@annistonal.gov.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
Primary Government
Governmenlial Bosinets-Type
Activities tivitles Totsl
ASSETS
Currenl Assets
Pooled cash and cash equivalenis 9.535,450 9,516,450
Investments 1,799,115 L799.115
Cazh bonds on hand 101,8%0 21490
Taxes reeervable, et 1,747,705 1,747,708
Accounts recoivablc, net 266,049 5634 274,733
Notes receivable 2,145,651 2245681
Onher roccivable 41,551 41553
D {rom sgency fund 30352 30352
Duc (nam other govemments 125520 12547
Internal balances 4777 4,770 =
Invenlories 63,268 14,949 140217
Prepaid iiems 1936 12062 04370
Other azseiy - - -
Total Curren) Amsels 16,874,647 93913 16,967,563
Non-turreal Assety
Restricted Asseix:
Cash 4471253 4471253
Investmenis -
Drfermed charges - bond issuance conts 1n.ns 11,789
Capital aspets
Non-depreciable asses 15695901 125,000 13520931
Depresiable stsets, pet of lated dep 04,338,557 58910 15197 467
Total Now-curreat Assety 108,117,530 [IFKIE] 103,00 440
TOTAL ASSETS 124992177 716313 123,769,005
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferrad charges on refunding 3299 - 12199
[HAIX Te it [FEN7 PRI
LIABILITIES
Current Liskties
Satarics end benefits paysble 690,049 AH1L05%
Accounts paysble 1,676,572 £3.382 1,759,934
Retainage payable 22,19 2196
Accrued lishilies ELLA [ 10,764 403.62%
Cash bond habilves 132,152 132152
Duc 10 agency fund awim 45,132
Lomn Payable -
Capital lcasca pavable - curvent 213563 213,561
Bonds payoble - currenl 1,219,004 1,219,000
Net athwer post emplovment benefits obgation 401,100 401,100
Imprgovernmental sgreement - cuTent 138498 112,491
Compensated absences payable 511,129 S$11,129
Totsl Curreni Liabilities 5,430 366 102,136 5,540,492
Long-term Liabilities
Capital letaea payable {net of current portion) 134,141 - 134,141
Compensatad sbyences payable - long term 1,499,061 . 1,399,061
Net other post employment beneflss obligation 418,127 ) 418,127
Bonds payable (et of current portion) 1,126,183 ) 38,126,183
Total Lonp-term Liabilities 44277512 - 44,277,512
TOTAL LIABILITIES 49,715,871 102,126 49,815,004
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Income eamed in finure periods 1022 842 - 1.822,342
Foes collested m advance 59,179 . 59,179
Unavailable revenue-property laxes - -
TOTAL DEFERREDR INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1182021 . 1,882,021
NET FOSITION
Caprial atveis, ned of relaned debt 62,845,114 £33910 63.529.624
Regincied for
Judicint 134,540 . 134,340
Public salety 3046523 - 3546513
Rond improvements 1,920,139 . 1,520,134
Cubture and recrzation (295,617) 78912 (316,704)
Housing and development - .
Capital prejocts 326,008 2 326.008
Dbt servics - -
Geanis - -
Endowmen fund - -
Commutted for
Capital projects 3,768,559 . 3,764.35¢
Assigned for
Economae Development $T1.606 572606
Unazy, 379,126 131375 612,500
TOTAL NET FOSITION 73,397,377 996,268 74,193,845
TOTAL 134,995 476 IiMIeN I!GESEI"H}




CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Aonizton City Public Libenry Farley L. Aaniston Musesm
Board of of Anniston’ Berman Endowment
Educatios Calkoua County Fousdstion. Ins. Lorporation Tutal
LALLM 3L154 208,329 39012 e SAH2 9K
4755 i 356 1 246,075 T4 64 L.476,796
738057 M 144191
42,036 2100 120 44347
20830 1,507 1334
7044 ki) - 71.023
4.030.584 450,580 209,067 1,308,207 111.120 tr, 1M1, % 5Y
1,765 465 20.284 §.794 749
1AM 23907 4702 434 19,400 1182204
1401197k 300 41271 = 14367267
17.1%1 300 EETRIT] $743.712 49.0%4 - 26114220
21212090 049K 1932719 1.354.291 [IINE 3242077
21,21 2080 o0 39K I.');JITT‘} T354.351 111,020 32,420,778
1520040 05979 1677020
4112 LA 12 16.635
Tl T DT
51T A0, TR
24411371 653,588 12 " A 26y
2.454.72% - £ . . 2384125
2434728 - : - - 1354728
4996 097 63,088 12 = - 508904
1,437,361 - - - [ ERS 33
1,433 3k3 - - - - 1,933,355
1251050k 139400 41,278 11974
(%] [ R e R 1354391 1w 05E. 11K
267.0H WToM
1.763 465 1,765 405
95.556 LU BT
(360,377) 206,146 209085 i ML 4654
i4. 282610 T26.613 §952.767 1.354.291 23 15,477 401
21,212,094 TY0.498 §.932.779 1.354.291 Wiz 3232077

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial stalements
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Net I'E_.wnn] Reveoot and Changes

In Net Assets
Frogram Revennes Primary Government
' Charges Jer
Servicet, Sale Operating Grants Capital Graay Governmenta) Huginesr- Type
Espenres and Fines and Contribui and Contributions Alivities Activisies Toial
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governtmeatal Activithes
General government 10075013 - (10,075.015) (10,075315)
Judicial 313,388 3130 63,743 61,74
Public safety 16,113,205 117,006 196,313 (15,094,726} (15,094,706}
Fublic works 9,021,367 1.041,574 417509 #12014 {6,949.470) (6.949.470)
Housing and devekpmesnt 170908 462,067 (407,851) (407.851})
Public Facilities 206,501 35434 (171,047 [17),047}
Culture and recreation 1,760,790 1,340,105 $17,795 {6,502,810) (6,302.310}
trterest on debt snd other exp 1343994 (+840.994) [1,348.9%4}
Total Governmentsl Activities 47.220978 1,590,973 1,620,158 612014 (41,307,031} - _{41,307.001}
Busisess-Type Activities
Museum Stom 10 10
Victona Hael {63,283) 63.295)
Component Unity
Annision City Board of Education 26,393,741 1,721,966 13,635,169 159,957
Public Labrary of
Anniston/Calhoun County 1,295.291 51,081 2117229 JoL 50
Fariey 1. Borman Foundalion. Inc. 160,015 24,597 93,450
Anniston Mutcum Endovwment Comp 90,958 1.96)
Annition Muttum League 45,245 72428
Tonal Component Units 27,991,620 1,900,877 14014272 661,707
GENERAL REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property 5,308,590 5,300,590
Sales 20,457,092 20.467.092
Licxnsct and permits 4,347,745 4347745
Aleoholic beverage 154,461 154,461
Other 1.396,763. 2396.763
Grants snd ibutions not d for specific progr . s
Capital Contributions from other fund {699,459} 680,206 {19.252)
Tnicrest carned 134,834 21 135,052
Tnvesiment catnings -
Miscellancouy 2,365,712 1,000 2366,712
Total Genersi Revenves 34475713 £11,427 33,157.162
Changein Net Position {6,911,296} 611,142 {6,291,154}
NET POSITION, BEGINNING 10,509,065 by R¥l] 20,192,194
Restatement of net positon due implomentation of GASB 65 {200,192) {200,192
NET POSITION, BEGINNING, RESTATED 10,300.173 37026 80686 999
NET POSITION, END 996,261 74 191 545

13391577




CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Nei {Expease) Revenve and Changes is Net Position

Lnits
Public Library Farley L. Ansiston Musewm Total
Anniston City of Ansiston/ Berman Endowment Maseurms Cumponest
HBoard of Education Calhoun County Foundation, Inc. Corporsiion Lengue Units
{10.ET0 645 110,67 649)
(725.261) (725261}
{40,013) {40,038}
{11.995) {47 9ys)
- - 27100 17.150
{11.676,649) (728261} (s0.03%) {B7.995) 1710 (10.512.763)
450,603 4.503 603
1.550.164 1,550,264
1426 13426
al$i 6151
611 98 652,700 L94eRD
402 L) 30,365 1] ERTic)
s2.507 72385 11,102 170 143
541.717 3.000 32246 51407 123 [CIREL]
T454,375 Y7507 31318 1928714 TUH 71
13,221.174) {27754y {11123 104,879 27300 (2 01)986)
17503 %04 754367 2 9MLAW 1.299.412 %1244 M.461.387
17,5103 S04 744367 597049 1249412 §3123 EETTRIY
14,282,610 THa 651 X952 767 ],354.291 111120 23427491
PRy = Sim— m— e DL

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial stalements
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BALANCE SHEET -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
McCleflan Compact Major Special
Pappy Duan Rd Revenue
General Construttion Fund Fire Tax Fund
ASZETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,701,994 - 2,592,710
Tnvestments 271507 - 1,184,574
Cazh bonds oo hand e L
Taxes rectivable., net of sllowanee 1,742,705 . =
A ivable. net of slb 266,04% - .
Maies recetvable. net of allowance - -
Ouher receivable
Prepaid nems 240,309 . .
[nveniones 63,260 - -
Other Assets E
Dhe from other funds 1.486.750 . .
Due from sgency fund . B
Drue fromn other gavernmenty 137,455 62414 9,188
Resineied cash - 2,159,229 -
TOTAL ASSETS lelsl 17 2|722 043 4|uwi473
LIABILITIES
Salaricy and bencfits payable 690,039 ) !
Accounts payable 1,028,015 34,104 44910
Retainage payable - 212,1% k!
Actrued habilibes - - .
Cash bond lisbihses 4,137 - -
Duz 10 other funds 304,630 - 145,466
~Dus 10 sgency fund - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1007641 406,997 190,376
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Inggane carmed in Fulure penods . N 5
Fees collected i advance 39,179 - Ci
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 49,179 . .
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendablc
Prepawd slems T40 909 + s
Invenones 63,268 - 2
Restncted for
Judieial . . b
Fublic safcty . . 1 08T
Road improvemnents - L1546 -
Count activitics - - =
Culwre &nd recresixon - . -
Housing and developmen - - -
Capital pregects. . a 4
Comemitted for
Culture and recreation . . -
Capital projects . =
Assigned ffor-
Housing and development - = 5
Economic Development 571,606
Unaszigned 529214 * o
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 6 169,997 21315046 3,896 097
TOTAL 3,316817 2.712'041 AIOIGiﬂ!




CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

ASSETS

Cash ord cazh cquivalents
Inveptmenty

Cash bunds on hand

Taxes recervable. net of allowance
Accounts receivable. net of ellowancs
Notes recevable. net of alknancs
Other recenvable

FPrepad iems

Inventones

Other Asscts

D fioen oalee funds

Due from agency fund

Due from other governments
Restricied cash

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Salancs dnd benefil pryable
Actounis payable

Retsnage pryable

Accrued habilives

Cash bond liabbitics

Dug 10 uther funds

Due 16 agency fund

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRFD INFLOWS UF RESOURCES
Incoms eamed i future peniss
Fees collected in advance

‘TOTAL BEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable
Prepasd tiena
Inventuones
Restrieted for
Judscisl
Public salfcty
Road improvernenly
Coun, sctivities
Cultwe and recreation
Housing and development
Capatal progecta
Commitied for
Culwure and recreanion
Capua! projects
Assigned for
Hounng and development
Economis Developmen
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES {DEFICIT)

TOTAL

Publk Mujor Special Non-major Total
Building Reveane Goveramenisl Goversmental
Awthority HOME Fusds Funds
- 100 2941640 4,336,450
s . 31850 (L AR
= 21,690 21 Wt
S - |.747.708
= . . 166HY
- 116,998 1038633 2.335.651
41,553 11,543
. 31407 WL M6
- 61,263
5 - LL R 2480291
. 530 118753 15521
2312014 . 1 1.471,288
1.312.014 ]il')l.‘lll 5,164,293 21,794 064
= - LR
= 478 154,039 1.670.57%
£ - - 22, vt
B - i an
- - 126.00% 132182
HE326 [ATTR]L 1.739.542 234.014)
. - 4% 131 48,03k
148,126 1359 2070.2%9 FEUERY S
. (BRI 635,044 1812042
5 5 . 46179
- 1,186,991 635,844 1,80102]
a - . Hiwy
B 63264
B - 131,633 131 633
- - 19,085 Ivisaz
E - L2514 3519800
2.163.691 - 1144,500) .019.19¢
. . L2 WL
- (109 485} 624314 514,029
570600
£178.037) 5,113,177
2 163,698 {109,485} 2430192 16,493 544
2312024 §,192.412 5,164,294 13.794i06-l

See nccompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements
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RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
FUND BALANCES TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES
Amuunts reporied for go i mihe of net penibon wre differeat because
Caputal anscts used 1 g | ate not i | and therefore are not reporied
1 the funds

Cost

Lets actumulnicd deprecistion

hiet uther pot employnent benefits obligations are nol du and payable i the current period and
therefore are not reponed 1n the funds,

Long-term liabilniscs are not due and payable i the current penod and therelone sre net reporied m the
Tund statements

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes o the basic financial stalements
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16 477 548
06,093 14)
(V2358668 103 534 9k%
(4,319.226) {4,419,226)
2.410,190
133,498
39,705 00y
LI
(363 115)
(1790
314341 (32,311,230}
74,397 477



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

REVENUES
Intergervernmental
Fincs and forfeitwes
Charges for services
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intorest carned
Miscellancous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current.
General governmen
Judizial
Public safey
Public works
Culiure and recreation
Public facihtics
Housing and development
Capital cullay
Debt Serviee
Principal
Truerest
Bond t3sue cons
Fiscal sgent less

TOTAL EXPENIITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds Irom sale of assels
Loan Proceds
Tranglers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES {USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES (DEFICTT), BEGINNING
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END, RESTATED

McCleBaa Compact Major
Pappy Dunn Rd Special Revetue
Gemerat Construction Fund Fire Tax Fund
50,000 562,814 .
330,914 . .
1.261,830 - -
217349289 - 134204
4,347,745 X Q
M2 . 2013
715,747 - .
35,062,357 562,814 126319
1,506,122
321,296 -
13455449 B0
5511375
6.922.505
767,790 0 431 665
. 16,700
35 484,336 197763 1,171,701
(422479} {334,954) {335,282}
17091 - -
. 1,650,000 .
31 H2 -
{1,943,733)
(1,841.999) 2 630,000
(1,264,478) 2,15.046 (335.302)
1434475 4231479
6160597 aaugs  _ 3wemw




CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

REVENLES
Ivergovernmental
Fincs and forfeatures
Charges for serv ices
Taxes
Liconsey and permily
Interest camed
Miscellancous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Cumrent.
Greneral governnent
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Cuhure sind feoreston
Public facilies
Housing and development
Capital outlay
Dbt Serviee
Principal
Inmerest
Bond 135uc cosis
Fiscal agent focs

TFOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS |DEFICIENCY) OF REVENLES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {UISES)
Froceeds from sale ol assets
Loan Prucends
Transfcrym
Transfers ow

‘TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SUUHRCES {USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND KALANCES (DEFICIT). BEGINNING
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

F1UND BALANCES (REFICIT), END, RESTATED

Public Major Special Nos-major Tatal
Building Gaovernmental Goversmental
Authority Funds Funds

- 443067 128909 2364972

. - 52 1,076,163

- 131,143 2342%13

: . M3 28,326 906

. . ' 4347748

233 1738 120716 134831
1,291.610 = 340,333 2.3470458
1,291,545 467 802 1770138 40.99) 373
" # 3ITTETT BER3 999

a R . 1LY

s . 1,242,156 153470641

5 = 57599 087273

. [ R TH972.70

46,803 1,119 128,162
469,004 92974 02008

TI0444 . 269024 3070791
113 000 pLr AL 1421 919
1.3% 84 = 329674 1.726.56%
a . - 16,700

1647 1,050 5737
3,041,908 A64.04 4 520610 45,845917
{1 750,063y {1,292} {2.080372) (459,542}
17.691

= 2050044}

REE 538 . 2. 250 M 32362162
. 3 {1.267.549) 13.236,2%2)

0335 - 971358 o067 8Y)
{361,528) {1,292} (1.079.007) {2226.050)
3025226 1108193} 315720 19 120 '
2.163.6%1 {199.485) 2451,192 16.093 34%

See accompanying notes 1o the basic finuncisl staternents
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENT

Amounls reported {or g | wn the of sciis ities are diffirety because

Governmental Tunds repost caprial cutlayy as ¢xpend H mthe cf actiitics the cost of thase asseis s allocaied
aver therr cstimates useful lives snd reponed as depretiation sypense  This 15 the dilferencs betwesn depreciation cxponde and eapral
wutlay m the currend penod

Capial outlay

Depreciation expense

Transfer of capital assets 1o propoctary fund
Net cost of capital assets digposed

The hiet et of vanouy nuscellancous iransaclions iy elving eapital asets (1 e sales, vade-ins snd donations | 15 to decrsase net
poston

The receipt and repayment of bonds, mlnp:)-lbl:Mcmlmhsepnmdnlmmudnww:mu:mmllfmh
kwt the actavily and T n the of net potition.
Losn procreds
Bond principal peyment
Amortizabion of bond insurance cost
Amortization of bond discounts
Cap:t.tlleueprlmpalpa)wl
Intergoy & prncipal payment

Semc expenses reported in the statement of scuivities, such as sccrued intenest, comp 1 b and cont: bilitics do net
rvqwt:llrmufemﬁmloimMﬂmfmwmlrvpmalunpmdﬂmmlkwvmmwﬁlﬂs

At anlerest

Compensmed sbsencey

Ollmpmmloymmntsobhlmmdndmmquu:n:mcrmm financia) resources and thetefore were: nol reported as
b | funds i the Si of Net Pesiuen.

CHANGE [N NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

REVENLES
Tanes
Sales and use
General propay taxes
Beverage taes
Anniston Housing Authonty
Water uitlity fecs
Cigaretis and wbacco
Garoline
Bingo
Lodging,
Rental
Busincas
Totsl Taxes

Licenses, permits and lees:
Buiness lisshses
Onher license and penalues
Total licenses. permits andd fees

Intergoveramental
Flanning gramy
‘Totsl Interguvernmenial

Charges fur services:
Garbage focs
Awpon) i g
Rental incomic
Recreation departsment fexs
Public works recopls
Publw safety recaa
Totsl Charges jor Setvices

Fines and larfeitures
Polies anrt fincs and fecs
Total Fines wnd Foricitares

Hiber revenue:
nterest on s catmenls
Miscelisescous e enue
Totnl Other Revenwe

TOTAL REVENLES
EXPENDITURES:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Fraance drvision
Greneral davision
Caty Counchl
Bunlding muatnicnancs
Profcasional servicen
Uuliues
Propecis

Workman's compensation sndufonce

Emplengy Tunded healthears
Other snaurance

Other buards avd agencics
Mesceilancous

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Vatinste
Original Final
Budget Budget Actoal {Negative}
20,090,000 20,538 852 20.467.092 171 706
4,770,500 4,860,206 414960 IB5735)
18,000 136939 134,461 17822
4,000 6,699 h.6%y -
500,000 341,118 55494y 17184
275 000 281759 W27 1018
350,000 333421 33601 9,520)
60,000 w356 35,624 {3,732}
90,000 90785 100,030 224%
400,000 48577 245,897 (9,320}
218738 162,616 214318 $1.402
27741228 27473131 2.3492m9 1123 332)
3350000 3,300,008 3430027 15001
958,310 335,708 11618 AL
4308310 4,105 716 4347748 [CH
35 .0 pLEL) 749.342 0,976
35,000 FLEDS 79,542 5,976
230,004 114085 17,037 157952
0 000 64,338 4504 pi
1,263.350 1,125,007 144430 19431
50,240 36210 38,058 L1185}
5300 6300 11.u84 +354
2,230,300 1,051,367 12324 150381
23,500 24903 1297 Q2.129)
25500 23903 1177 A2.024)
20 000 20,000 7631 2R
S?!.ll_l_)_ Ju8.247 1 033880 teld 633
591300 403,247 1030412 [AFX25]
34930035 MHATL T 15,062,358 [ETRTE]
1223 455272 971,815 (116.343)
260,334 446,014 519348 {42,731)
162 406 192,234 136,714 150
1,431,500 1,325 w1 1,357,204 310
100,000 u5.004 129561 {24.357)
40,000 445,000 46430 (430)
JIn000 376,330 420,200 {41,K%))
400 553,097 5199y 351
2,450,500 2.543,000 pRAMER]] [ELELL)
45 000 340,434 51637 24060
502,500 20300 sism #.612
S15.050 1135099 1203511 176124
7959553 RY72.0v7 9035457 163,060}

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stalements



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

PUBLIC SAFETY
Poles
Loty courl
Detemron Tacibiies
fue
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

PUBLIC WORKS
General
Cemelery
Enpmeening
Guage
Environmental senices
Sireet depattmen
Aurport
Cude Enfurcement & Inspection
Pluwming
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Adminstralion
Parks, facilines. and utedriscs
PARD programs

Park munictance
C P £ North

§
Anntston/Cathoun Counly Library
Anniston City Boand of Educauon
Farley L. Berman Mussum

Alabama

TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION

DEUT SERVICE
Frincipal
Interest
TUTAL DEBT SERVICE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
GVER (LUNDEH| EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND {USES}):

Proc=ada from sake of caprial asscla
Capital keasc:

Tiangiers in

Transiers om

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE. END

Original Final Positive
Budpet Bldlﬂ Aciunl (Negative)
TAIINS 71651791 1800673 (150,882}
122,147 13,664 32129 (5.632}
573089 533,745 530,856 1189
4.233.014 5.233.7177 3261517 127.740)
13,574,638 13,740,977 13,922 042 [T
475,561 5223809 568,766 48,957}
10,963 34,602 84,364 in
2139 786221 279,04 (575}
167460 154,030 147 785 0233
1.171,000 1126402 1 146011 (19,520}
282118 3,010.29) JUHD AR 79377}
54,611 128953 i3lai3 (2,060}
26,857 2639 206,738 (2im)
161,540 221841 216,70 6,044
3403099 3,732 951 5870245 {137,294
1,628 1.067.400 1108422 {41,022
2416,772 2,560 465 153959 20.%69
93,750 93,700 196,291 {102,591}
197,041 465498 aB4031 {15,033
3ol 500 ol 300 35,000 (232004
460,000 560.000 560,000 .
1,305,000 1,305 000 1 305000 -
135,000 78,750 75,750 =
6.5 oyn [N} ] 4,657.0%0 {1RD977)
1245300 R PR | 15484833 {542 24}
1L0%5 478 (770.660) {42247 34k 1%
145,000 11,736 179 16.15%)
43 (8,043}
{1.829.375) (197911 {1.944.733) {30381}
(1,634,375} (1L.967.370) (1341999 [125.37)
110 (2. 738,046 (2.264.478) 473,568
9.434.478 1434478 5434478
1,438,575 3,646,429 4,159,997 473 568

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
Policemen’s and
Municipal Firemen's
Court Retirement Fund
ASSETS
Cagh and cash equivalems 152,590 393.4v8
Accounts reeen able
Contnbutien Comnbution 84018
Accounls Reconable’ 32,302
326017
nsestments, o fax value
U5 Govemmem obhigsions - 1,386,236
Municimpal obligaticns - 4 902
Corporaic bonds . 11,358.734
Iicmaticnal vbligatiny . 1717123
Domesuc equity secunbes - 3,423 768
Inicrnauonal equity sceuriies -
Collective snvestment fund - 34,048
Tmber - 50,068
Real catate . 1,124.00%
28,366,691
TOTAL ASSETS 152.590 26256503
LIABILITIES
Actenatily payable 122238 46,017
Due 1o general fund 30352
TOTAL LIABILITIES 152591 - Ab.37
NET POSITION
Net Posiion Restricted for Pension Benefits (a schedule of funding progress 15
presenicd as requared supplementary information) 26 140466

See nccompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 34, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

ADDITIONS
Contnbutions
Employer
Empleye
Toisl Coniributions

Invesimeni Earnings:
Interest
Drvidend
Net approciation in farr value of imvestments
Miscellancous
Touz! Investment Earmings.
Less Invesinct expenses
Net Invesiment Income

Tolal Additions
DEDUCTIONS
Admimistrativc cxpenses
Benefily pand directly Lo participants
Total Deduchons

NET EINCREASE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING

NET POSITION, ENDING

Sec accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Policemen’s s0d
Firemen's
Retirement Fund

3067464
1122994
4 19058

142972
130
2500745
54
1833623

(113,667}
1720956

L911,014
132727
4.420.334

4.561.001

1349953

23090513

16240460



STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
Huginets-ty pe Atlivitics- Enterprise Funda
Muscum Vicloria
Store Hoted Totsl

ASSETS
Currenl Assels

Cash & cash cquivalonis $ 300066 $ 1350 3 121564

Actuunts receny ables B.6K4 1084

Prepaid oxpenicy . 12,062 12,062

Inventones 66363 [ 1) 16449
Taoisl Curreni Assets 34 44,530 419.261
Praperty sod equipment. wel 11,405 672,508 [AERT]
TOTAL ASSETS ] 385836  § 117338 § ).003.17]

e

LIABILITIES
Cwrrent Lisbilitics

Accounts payable 5 [ 1 5 11976 L 43302

Taxes payable 36 ([ XX} 18,764

Dhue 1o other funds 4777 - 4771
Tolal Current Lisbilities 6,474 100,424 106,903
TOTAL LYABILITIES 64TY 100,424 106903
NET POSITION

Linnestrocted Jouin aleyil wir.ms

Temporarily restncied Th9N3 - TH T
TOTAL NET POSITION 379,357 616,911 Y6208
TOTAL ] 335 836 3 717,335 b 1,103 17)

See accompanying notes o the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Musewm S1ore
Temporarily Victuris
Unrestritied Resiricted Total Hotel Tutal

OPERATING REVENUES

Sales H LERC LI 4 - H 33 s MWTe6] 8 751,010

Other income 3 - 393 11.213 11.608
TOTAL QPERATING REVENUES $3,142 - 33742 L ETe 162,610
OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel services 10,694 . 10,699 371664 2.362

Purchascd and contraciural scrvices 24,707 - 24,707 180192 205,199

Management [ecs . 61,039 £1,03

Matenal , supplics and other expense 16,512 - 16812 144,236 151,050

Deprecision 1314 - 1514 14.03% 15,552
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 337132 - 33,732 712111 313,903

Operating Income (Loas} 1 - 14 (63.295) (61,285}
NONODPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Dunavons 1000 L 1,000 . 1,000

Inierest income 21 - b+ - an

Capital Contnbution from other fund 530206 680,206

Total Nonopetsting. Revermuet {Expenscy) 5,221 N )220 6RO 24N £E1.427
CHANGE IN NET POSITION j#]} - 123 61691} 610,147
NET FOSITION - BEGINNING DF YEAR 199,143 71.96) ki NP 370126
NET PGSITION - END OF YEAR ] 300.374 1 T4.95) b 374.347 § Ao Y11 5 996,258

w— - =

Sce sccompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Cash Flaws frum Operating Activities
Cash recerved from customers
Cash pd ot purchases
Caah pax! for operating expenditures
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Operalting Activities

Cush Flows from Caplisl aad relaied finasting Activities
Cupital Contnbubson fron other fund
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Caplial and relaied Activities

Cazh Flows froe lavening Activilies
Interest and donauons
Purchase of Capital Asscts
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in} Investing Activities

Net Iocrease in Cash
Cash and Cash Equivaleats, Beginning

Cash amd Cash Equivalents, End

Revuntilistiua of Operating income to Net Cash Flows from Dperating Activitics
Dperating Intome {Loss)

Adjusimesis to Recoacile Increase (decrease) ia Unrestricied Net
Asscts to Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
Depreciation snd smoriization
(Increas) Detreass i
Accouns Receivables
Invenony
Prepand Expenscs
Increase (Decreasclin
Accouns paysble
Accrued payrell and withheld tases
Due to other funds

Nel Caak Flows Provided by (Used in) Dperating Activities

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Musewen Victoria
Store Hotel Totat
312§ Mol 8 751,934
{21.436) (191 716} 1215 613]
{?J.If:!! (JL3.579) 1511.]44!
6,541 19837 26,478
580204 680,206
- 680 200 680.206
1,221 - 1.1
(f)lﬂj‘!! £86.543
1,221 1656.543) (685.322)
7,862 13.500 21,362
30024 = 200,204
308,006 13.500 121,566
— wva——
14 {63 T PE3JASH
1L.514 1403 15,552
(1.634) {B.683)
571 {10,5%4) {3713
547 {12062} {11.515)
{160} L{R r(8 41,816
{¥i} (1B} 17.530
4.777 - 4,737
6631 §3.112 88,763
6,641 3 19,537 5 26478

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Anniston, Alabama (the “City”) have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governments. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (the “GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are
described below.

A, Reporting Entity

The City of Anniston, Alabama, was incorporated in 1883 under the laws of the State of Alabama. The City operates
under the Council / Manager form of government with a City Council consisting of five council members elected for
concurrent terms of four years, One council member is elected at large by the qualified voters of the City and has the
title of Mayor. The City Manager is appointed by the Council and has full administrative authority for the operations
of the City. The City provides the following services 1o its citizens as authorized by its charter: public safety (police
and fire), recreation, water, and general and administrative services. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the City of Anniston, Alabama (the *ptimary
governnient™) and its component units. The component units discussed below are included in the City's reporting
entity because ol the significance of its operational or financial relationship with the City. In conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles, as set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, the financial statements of the component units is discretelv presentzd in
the financial statements, Effective October 1, 2012, the City adopted GASB 61, the “Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 34.” Effective October 1, 2013, the City adopted
GASB 65, "lrems Previously Reported as Assets or Liabilities”.

Discretely Presented Component Units
Included in the

Component Unit Separate Finuncial

Reporting Entity Statements
Because AT
The Anniston City Board of Education is the The bonded debt must be These audited financial
governing board for the City School System. Eligible issued through the City statements are located at
vaters in the City elect the members of the Board. The which the Council must Anniston City Hall.
City schools are fiscally dependent upon the City approve.

since the board cannot issue bonded debt directly.

The Public Library of Anniston and Calhoun
County receives a substantial amount of financial
support from the City; however, they do not approve
the Library's opetations and capital budgets.

The Farley L. Berman Foundation, Inc. is fiscally
dependent upon the City for its operational support;
however, the City does not approve the Foundation's
capital budgets or operations.

The members of the
governing board are
appointed by the City of
Anniston and the Calhoun
County Commission.

The City fiscally supports
the entity.

28

These audited financial
statements are located at
Anniston City Hall.

These audited financial
statements are located at
Anniston City Hall.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

NOTE1
Discretely Presented Component Units (continued)

Component Unit

Included in the
Reporting Entity
Because

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Separate Financial
Statements

The Anniston Museum Endowment Corporation
exists only due to its relationship with the Anniston
Museum of Natural History, which is a department of
the City: however, the City does not fiscally support
its capital budgets or operations. The entity year end
is June 30, 2013,

The Museum League exists only due to its
relationship with the Anniston Museurn of Natural
History, which is a department of the City: however,
the City does not fiscally support ils capital budgets or
operations.

‘Blended Component Unit

Component Unit

The Corporation sole
mission is to support the
Anniston Museum of
Natural History, a
department of the City.

The Corporation sole
mission is to support the
Anniston Museum of
Natural History, a
department of the City.

Included in the

These audited financial
statements are located at
Anniston City Hall.

These unauditad financial
statements are located at
Anniston City Hall,

Separate Financial

Reporting Entity Statements
Because
The Anniston Public Building Authority was The bonded debt must be Separate financial
established to account for the construction and issued through the City statements are not prepared.

ongoing maintenance of City buildings. The Authority
is fiscally dependent upon the City since the Authority
cannot issue bonded debt directly.

which the Council must
approve,

The MusAnn Corperation, Inc. was established to
operate the retail store located at the Anniston
Museum of Natural History, a department of the City.
The Corporation’s operation is dependent upon the

The Corporation’s sole
mission is to support the
Anniston Museum of
Natural History, &

Separate financial
statements are not prepared,
however they are audited
and included in the City's

Museum's staff. It is reported as a business-type department of the City. financial statements as the
activity. business-type activitv.
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

These statements report financial information for the City as a whole. The primary government and the discretely
presented component units are presented separately within these financial statements with the focus on the primary
govenment, The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely lo a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment
Program revenues include 1) charges to those who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are resiricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment, Taxes and other items not included among program
revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separalte financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Mensurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financia! statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are for fiduciary fund financial statements, although the agency fund has no
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
segardless of the timing of the refated cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which
they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
maodified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 6¢ days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures
related to long-term debt, compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Property taxes, sales taxes, intergovernmental grants, and investment income associated with the current fiscal period
are ail considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and availabie only when cash is received by the City.

In aceordance with GASB Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions,”
the corresponding assets (receivables) in nonexchange transactions are recognized in the period in which the
underlying exchange occurs, when an enforceable legal claim has arisen, when all eligibility requirements have been
met, or when resources are received, depending on the revenue source.

Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial stutements, The City
reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
govermnment, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. ; ik
The McClellan Compact Construction Fund facilitates infrastructure expansion and improvement in the
McClellan Industrial Park.

The Special Revenue Fire Tax Fund accounts for the collection of special tax and revenues that are restricted
for expenditures for specific purpose.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) :
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

The Public Building Authority Fund facilitates the construction and financing of major facilities for lease to
the City funded by building revenue bonds.

The Special Revenue HOME Consortium Fund accounts for the collection of federal grant money and
revenues that are restricted for expenditures for specific purpose.

The City also reports the following fund types within the non-major governmental funds:

Debt service fund accounts for the repayment of principal and interest on the City's outstanding bond
issues and other debt obligations of the City.

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Improvement Fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of major facilities funded by City
operations.

Fiduciary Fund Type

The agency fund is used to account for the collection and disbursement of monies by the City Municipal
Court, such as traffic fines.

The Policemen's and Firemen's Retirement Fund accounts for assets held by the City as an'agent or trustee
to be invested and expended in accordance with the conditions of the trustee capacity. The City uses this fund
1o account for the assets of the defined benefit plan.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reperting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed
in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict
guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject 10 this same
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs reported for the various functions concerned.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restrictzd resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed,

D. Cash and Investments

Cash consists of demand deposits, and investments consist of government securities and certificates of deposit. Cash
balances and the requirements of all funds are considered in determining the amount to be invested. Interest earned
on cash and invesiments is recorded as General Fund revenue and allocated between funds based upen balances. In
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board No, 31, Accounting for Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools, the City reports its money market investments and investments in
short term debt securities that have remaining maturities of one year or less at amortized cost. All other investments
are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E. Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal
year as well as all other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”

F. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

G. Inventories

Allinventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. [nventories consist of expendable supplies
held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an asset at the time the individual item is purchased. 1inventories
reported in the governmental funds are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates that thev do not
constitute “available, spendable resources” even though they are a component of net current assets.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individuai cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects
are constPucted. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following useful lives:

Assetl Years
Building and improvements 20-40 .
Improvements other than buildings 25-40
Machinery and equipment 5-10
Infrastructure 25-75

Infrastructure assets acquired prior 1o September 30, 1980 are included in the amounts reported.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}
I. Deferred Outflows/ Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and/ or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The City has only one item that qualifies for reporting in this category.
It is the deferred charges on refundings reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge
on refunded debt results from the difference in carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources {revenue) until that time. The government has two types of items, program income and other income
earned in future periods.

J Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities
in the applicable governmental activities statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as other assets and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

Al the governmental fund financial reporting level, bond premiums and discounts are reported as other financing
sources and uses, separately from the face amount of the bonds issued. Bond issuance costs are reported as
expenditures,

K. Compensated Absences

Accumulated sick pay benefits have not been recorded as a liability because these benefits are paid upon the illness
of an employee and the amount of such payments cannot be reasonably estimated. Accumulated unpaid vacation costs
are accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental funds report the compensated absence liability at the fund reporting level enly “when due.”

L. Fund Equity

Fund 2quity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as *“fund balance.” Fund equity for all
other reporting is classified as “net position.”

Fund Balance

Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the assets and liabilities under the current financiai
resources measurement focus of accounting. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints
on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balances are classifizd as follows:

i3



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTGN, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
L. Fund Equity {continued)

e Nonspendable - Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form (i.e., items that are not expected to be converted to cash) or {b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact.

 ®  Restricted - Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

¢  Committed - Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council through the adoption of a resolution.
Only the City Council may modify or rescind the commitment.

e Assigned - Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by the Citv’s intent to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Through resolution, the City Council has
authorized the City Manager to assign fund balances.

M. Fund Equity

¢ Unassigned - Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when the balances do not meet
any of the above criterion. The City reports positive unassigned fund balance only in the general fund.
Negative unassigned fund balances may be reported in all funds.

s © Flow Assumptions - When both restricted and unrestricled amounts of fund balance are available for use for
expenditures incurred, it is the City’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as
they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City's policy to use fund balance in the
following order:

»  Committed
»  Assigned
* Unassigned

e Net Position - Nel position represent the difference between assets & deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities & deferred inflows of resources in reporting which utilizes the economic resources measurement
focus. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used (i.e., the amouni that the City has
spent) for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted
using the same definition as used for restricted fund balance as described in the section above. All other net
assets are reported as unrestricted.

The City applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 2 RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between governmental funds balance sheet and the government-wide statement of
net position: ;

The governmental funds balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental funds and
net position — governmental activities as reported in the statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation
explains that “capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the funds.” The details of this difference are as follows:

Land 5 9305017
Collection 8,377,742
Construction in progress 1,013,172
Buildings & Improvements 64,277,073
Less: Accumulated depreciation-Buildings & Improvements (21,118,999)
Improvements other than Buildings _ 13,945,348
Less: Accumulated depreciation-lmprovements other than Buildings (9,704.731)
Machinery & Equipment 3,745,135
L.ess: Accumulated depreciation-Machinery & Equipment (4335,156)
Infrastructure 105,429,666
Less: Accumulated depreciation-Infrastructure (71,299,779)
Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total government funds to arrive at net position -
governmental activities § 103,534,488

The governmental funds balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental funds and
net position — governmental activities as reported in the statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation
explains that long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current year and, therefore, are not reported in the
funds. The details of this difference are as follows:

Bonds Payable $ (39,705,000)
Deferred charge (to be amortized as interest expense) 363,115
Issuance discounts and premiums (to be amortized as interest expense) 111,790
Intergovernmental agreement (138,498)
Capital lease (348,104)
Accrued interest payable (384,343)
Compensated absences (2,410,190)
OPEB Obligations (4,519,226}
Net adjustment 1o reduce fund balance - total government funds to arrive at net position - ;
governmental activities 3 (47,030,456)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 2 RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanation of certain differences between governmental funds statement of revenue, experditures and changes in
fund balances and the government -wide statement of activities:

The governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances includes reconciliation
between Net Change in Fund Balances - total governmental funds, and changes in net position of governmental
activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliatior: explains that
governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cosi of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The details of this difference
are as follows:

Qutlays capitalized 5 3,170,790
Net value of assets disposed or transferred to proprietary funds (699,584)
Depreciation expense {5,442,522)
Net Adjustment to increase net change in fund balances -

total government funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities 8 (2,971,316)

Another slement of that reconciliation states that the issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources
of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. The details of this difference are as follows:

Debt issued or incurred v
Proceeds from long-term debt issued 5 12,650.000)

Amortization of long-term debt related, premiums, discounts, etc, (38,058)
Principal repayments (including refunding proceeds to escrow agent) 1,422,919
Net adjustment to increase net change in fund balances - total government funds to arrive at
" changes in net position of governmental activities S (1.205,139)

Another element of that reconciliation states some expenses reported in the statement of activities differ from amounts
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. The details of this difference are as follows:

Compensated absences b (83.!83)
OPEB Obligations (303,079)
Accrued interest (61,931
Net adjustment to decrease net change in fund balances - total government funds to arrive at

changes in net position of governmental activities 3 (448,190)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The following procedures are used by the City in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:
Prior to October 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council proposed operating budgets for the fiscal
year commencing October 1.

Public hearings are conducted at City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.
Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of a resolution.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments of any fund; however, any
revisions to the total expenditures of any fund or department must be approved by the City Council

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all
governmental funds.

All unencumbered appropriations lapse automatically on September 30.

State law prohibits any municipality from making expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts unless the
actual revenue is more than the budgeted amounts.

Budgets for all funds are prepared in accordance with the modified accrual basis for accounting.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council.

The following funds had excesses of actual expenditures over appropriations in the amount shown for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2014,

General Government

Finance Division $ 116,543
General Division 42,731
Building Maintenance 31,213
Professional Services 24,557
Utilities 430
Projects 43,853
Miscellaneous 17,612
Public Safety
Police 150,882
City court 5,632
Fire 27,740
Public Works
General 45,957
Engineering 875
Environmental Services 19,528
Street Department 79,377
Airport 2,060
Code Enforcement 2,099
Culture and Recreations
Administration 41,022
PARD Program 102,591
Park Maintenance 15,033
Community Foundation of NE AL 23,200
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Custodial Credit Risk:

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. State statutes require all deposits and investments (other than federal or state
government instruments) to be collateralized by depository insurance, obligations of the U.S. government, or bonds
of public authorities, counties, or municipalities.

The City is restricted by State statute to investments in U.S. Government Treasury and Agency securities, certificates
of deposit and money market accounts, repurchase agreements and reverses repurchase agreements, banker's
acceptances and commercial paper. Each of the banks holding the City's deposits, as well as those of the component
unils, is 4 certified participant in the SAFE program. Through the SAFE program, all public funds are protected
through a collateral pool administered by the Alabama State Treasury. Cash deposits and savings held at local banks
are insured by the FDIC or collateralized by assets administered by the state treasurer’s office in accordance with the
“SAFE” program.

At September 30, 2014, all of the deposits of the City were fully collateralized in accordance with the state statutes.

As of September 30, 2014, the City had the following deposits, classified as investments.

Investment Type Maturities Fair Value
Certificates of deposit 365 days or less 5 1,343,994
Money market N/A 455,121

5 1,799,115

Interest Rate Risk:
The City does not have a formal investment policy that Timits investment maturities as a means of managing its

exposureto fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However, all investments are reviecwed on a monthly
basis for interest rate fluctuations and appropriate actions are taken to minimize this risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 5 RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2014, for the City’s individual funds, including the applicable allowances for
uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Special

Revenue Non-Major
Receivables General HOME Governmental Total
Taxes $ 1,747,705 5 - % - .5 1,747,703
Accounts 646,864 - - 646,864
Notes - 1,186,998 1,179,783 2,366,781
Gross Recejvable 2,394,569 1,186,998 1,179,783 4,761,330 .
Less Allowance for Uncollectible {380.815) (121,130) (501,945)

Net Total Receivable-Net $ 2013754 § i,186998 § 1058653 § 4,259,405

Property taxes are levied as of October 1 of each year on property assessed the preceding October 1. The taxes are due
on October 1 and become delinguent on the lien date of January 1. Billings are mailed out on October | of each year.
Property taxes are received monthly from Calhoun County. Taxes that are not both available and measurable are not
accrued. These include property taxes, business licenses and franchise taxes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2014 is as follows:

Governmental Activities Balance Balance
9/30/13 Additions Deductions Transfers 9/30/14
Non-Depreciable
Land $ 8925355 $ 379,662 5 - $ - § 9305017
Collections 8,342,992 34,750 - - 8377.742
Construction in Progress - 1,013,172 - - i.013,172
17,268,347 1,427,584 - - 18,695,931
Depreciable
Buildings & Improvements 64,639,239 352,541 - (714,707) 64,277,073
Machinery & Equipment 13,933,702 807,215 {795,569) 13,945,348
Improvemenis other than 3,161,685 583,450 - - 1,745,135
buildings
Infrastructure 105,429,666 - - - 105,429,666
Total other Capital Assets 187,164,292 1,743,206 (795,569} (714,707) 187.397,222
Total Capital Assets 204,432,639 3,170,790 (795,569} (714,707} 206,093,153

Accumulated Depreciation

Buiidings 19,431,738 1,697,601 (10,341 21.118,993

Machinery & Equipment 9,538,105 954,045 (795,444) 8,023 9,704,731

Improvemenis other than Bldgs 327.405 107,751 - - 415,156

Infrastructure 68,616,655 2,683,125 - - 71,299,780
Total Accumulated

Depreciation 97,913,903 5,442,522 (795,444) (2,316} 102,558,665

Governmental Activities .
Capital Assets, net £106518736 § (2,271,732_)_ s (125) § (7l2.39ll $ 103,534,488

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General Government $ 884,410
Public Safety 829,985
Public Works 3,015,157
Housing and Development 108,850
Culture and Recreation 604,120

S sam5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Business Type Activities Balance Balance
9/30/13 Additions Deductions Transfers 9/30/14
Non-Depreciable
Land 5 - - $ - $ 125000 3 125.000
Buildings & Imrprovements 30,884 - - 549,590 580,474
Furniture and Fixtures 27,925 - - 11,953 39,878
58,809 - - 561,543 620,352
Accumulated Depreciation (45,890) (15,552) - - 161,442)
12,919 (15,552) - 686,543 683,910
Component Units: Balance Balance
9/30/13 Additions Deductions 9/30/14
MNon-Depreciable ;
Land $ 1,423,863 5 - ) - $ 1,423,863
Collections 8,728,341 - 8,728.341
10,152,204 - 10,152,204
Depreriated
Collections 831,290 - 831,290
Buildings 17.048,132 - 17,048,132
Building Improvements 15,741,935 5,750 - 15,747,685
Vehicles 833,726 - 833.726
Machinery & Equipment 2,042,130 85,201 {3,448} 2,123,883
Totul other Capilal Assets 36,497,213 90,951 (3,448) 36,584,716
Total Capital Assels 46,649,417 90,951 (3,448} 46,736,920
Accumulated Depreciation
Collections 786,311 29917 - 815,228
Buildings 11,378,480 325,264 - 11,703,744
Building Improvements 6,587,242 538,021 - 7,125,263
Land Improvemenis 210,179 4,655 - 214,834
Vehicles 563,843 42,910 - 606,753
Machinery & Equipment 1,668,688 83,250 (131D 1,750,627
Total Accumulated Depreciation 21,194,743 1,024,017 (1,311) 22,217,449
Governmental Activities Capital
Assets, nel $ 25,454,674 5 (933,066) £ (2,137) § 24519471
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 7

LONG-TERM DEBT

Primary Government

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2014 is as follows:

Due In More

Balance Balance Due Within Than One
9/30/13 Additions Reductions 930714 One Year Yeur
Governmental activities
Bonds and warrants § 38,125,000 §$ 2650000 § 1.070,000 § 39705000 § 1219000 § 38,486.000
Less deferred amounts
Unamortized refunding {3,505) - (206) {3,299) - (3,299)
Unamortized discount (380,438) - (20,621) {359,817) - (359,817)
Total Bonds and Warrants 37,741,057 2,650,000 1,049,173 39,341,884 1,219,000 38,122,884
Intergovernmental
Agreement 276,251 - (137,753) 138,498 138,498 ' -
Capital lease payable 563,271 (215,167} 348,104 213,963 134,141
Compensated absences 2,327,007 83,183 2,410,190 511,129 1,899,061
Net OPEB Obligations 4,216,151 1,038,700 (735,624) 4,519,227 401,100 4,118,127
Governmental activities
Long- Term Liabilities $ 45,123,737 $ 3,771,883 § (39,371 § 46,757,903 § 2483690 § 44,274,213

Governmental activities:

Bonds and Warrants.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the City issued the Series 2010 gencral obligation bonds
for purposes of (a) financing the costs of capital improvements for the City, (b) refunding of the 1998
issuance, (c) paying the expenses of issuing the bonds. The bonds are direct obligations of the City, and full
faith and credit of the City is pledged against the bonds. The 2010 Series General Obligation Warrants are
due semi-annually at rates ranging from 4.2% - 5.3% per annum, maturing March 1, 2035. The balance at
September 30, 2011 was $7,440,000. The carrying amount of the old debt exceeded the reacquisition price
by $19,012. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the life of the new debt,
which is longer than the refunded debt. The transaction also resulted in an economic gain of $3,917 and a
reduction of $19,707 in future debt service payments.

During the year ended September 30, 2011, The City issued bonds through the Public Building Authority of
the City of Anniston in the amount of $16,170,000 for the DHR Building Project, The procesds from the
bonds are to be used for construction of a building and pay certain costs incurred in connection with the
execution and delivery of the bonds. The bonds are limited obligations of the City and are payable solely
from the rent received on the building. The 2011 Series DHR Building Revenue Bonds are due semi-annually
at rates ranging from 2.0% - 5.5% per annum, maturing May 1, 2033,
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NOTES

TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 7

LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)
Bonds and Warrants. (continued)

During the year ended September 30, 2011, the City issued bonds through the Public Building Authority of
the City of Anniston in the amount of $15,000,000 for the Judicial Center Project. The proceeds from the
bonds are to be used for construction of a building and pay certain costs incurred in connection with the
execution and delivery of the bonds. The bonds are limited obligations of the City and are payable solely
from the rent received on the building. The 2011 Series Judicial Center Building Revenue Bonds are due
semi- annually at rates ranging from 2.25% - 5,00% per annum, maturing March [, 2043,

On September 8, 2014, the City issued $ 2,650,000 general obligation warrants (Series 2014-A) to fund road
improvements on Pappy Dunn Boulevard and Iron Mountain Road. [n addition, the State of Alabama will
pay approximately $1,400,000 to assist in the project. Also, municipalities located in Calhoun County have
committed funds to assist the City in the debt service on the § 2,650,000. The 2014-ASeries principal
payment of $124,000 are due annually beginning January 31, 2015 through January 31, 2022, and principal
payments of § 237,000 are due annually beginning January 31, 2023 through January 31, 2029. The interest
rate is 3.48% and interest is paid on the remaining balance each year on January 31%

Annual debt service requirements to amortize bonds and warrants outstanding, as of
September 30, 2014 follow:

Fiscal Year Ended Governmental Activity
September 30 Principal Interest Total

2015 1,219,000 1,710,328 2,929,328

2016 1,249,000 1,734,689 2,983,689

2017 1,284,000 1,700,030 2,984,030

2018 1,314,000 1,661,946 2,975,946

2019 1,349,000 1,619,845 2,968,845
2020-2024 7,606,000 7,297,829 14,903,829
2025-2029 9,449,000 5,457,120 14,906,120
2030-2034 9,065,000 3,047,696 12,112,696
2035-2039 3,795,000 1,489,883 5,284,883
2040-2043 3,375,000 348,375 3,723,375
Total $ 39,705,000 $26,067,740 $ 65,772,740

Intergovernmental Agreement.

Cn July 1, 2000, the City Council approved participation with the East Central Alabama Industrial
Development Autherity along with nine other cities and four counties. The Authority issued $15,475,000
of Special Obligation Bonds to provide infrastructure for the Honda plant located at Lincoln, Alabama.

First Commercial Bank administers the bond agreement {Honda Funding Agreement). The City agreed to
make annual payments of principal and interest on February 1 of each year beginning 2001 and ending 2013
with principal and interest payments ranging from $145,852 to $152,397. The balance at Scptember 30,
2014 was $138,498.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 7 LONG-TERM DERBT (continued)

Annual debt service requirements to amortize the intergovernmental agreement outstanding, as of September
30, 2014 follow:

Fiscal Year Ended Governmental Activity
September 30 Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 138,498 $§ 7486 $ 145,984
Total 3 138498 3 7,486 $ 145,984

Capital Leases

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of various equipment. The
lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes (titles transfer at the end of the lease terms)
and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date
of their inceptions. The fellowing is an analysis of leased assets under capital leases as of September 30,

2014:
Governmental
Activities

Equipment § 793,510

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (451,026}

Net After Accumulated Depreciation 342,484

Non Capitalized Equipment 179,611

Total $ 522,095

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments together with the present value of net
minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2014:

Governmental
Fiscal Year End September 30, Activities
2015 213,963
2016 131,043
2017 11,787
2018 3,413
Total Minimum Lease Payment 360,206
Less amount representing interest (12,102)
Present value of future minimum lease payments § 348,104
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 7 LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)
Component Unit: Anniston City Board of Education

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2014 is as follows:

Due Due In
Beginning Ending Within More Than
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year One Year
Governmental activities
2003 Pool Bond $ 654,393 b - § 48,870 $ 605,523 § 50,798 $ 554,725
QZAB 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Governmenial activities
Long-Term Liabilities § 2,654,393 s - $ 48870 $ 2,605,523 $ 50,798 $ 2,554,725

2003 Pool Bonds. During the year ended September 30, 2004, the Board borrowed $1,021,738 to finance
the acquisition and construction of certain capital improvements to the public schools under the jurisdiction
and control of the Board. The Capital Improvement Pool Bonds Series 2003 are payable, as both principal
and interest, solely out of and secured by a first priority pledge and assignment of pleédged capital outlay
funds. The principal is payable on December |1 of each year. Interest computed at 4.13% is payable on June
1 and December | of each year beginning June 1, 2004. The maturity date of the Pool Bonds is December 1,
2023,

Annual debt service requirements to amortize bonds and warrants September 30, 2014 follow:

Fiscal Year Ended Governmental Activity
September 30 Principal Interest Total
2015 50,577 24,177 74,754
2016 52,665 22,046 74,711
2017 54,839 19,827 74,666
2018 57,104 17,516 74,620
2019 - 2023 322,892 49,436 372,328
2024 67,745 1,399 69,144
Total $ 605,523 $ 134,401 $ 739,924
NOTE § INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2014, is as follows;

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Fire Tax Fund $ 145466
General Fund Public Building 148,326
General Fund Non Major 1,739,552
Non Major General Fund 304,630
Non Major HOME 110,189
General Fund Proprietary Fund 4,777
General Fund Agency Fund 30,351
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 8 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, and (2) payments between funds are made.

Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2014 were:

Nonmajor
General Governmental
Transfers In Fund Funds Total
General Fund $ 5 88,843 $ 88,343
Public Building Authority 888,535 - 888,535
Nonmajor Governmental Fund 1,060,198 1,198,706 2,258,904
$ 1,948,733 $ 1,287,549 $ 3,236,282

These transfers were used to assist other funds in meeting operating requirements for the year ended
September 30, 2014.

NOTE9 RETIREMENT PLANS

The City participates in two pension plans which cover substantially all employees. Both of these plans are established
by state law and are administered by outside trustees. The Retirement Systems of Alabama’s accounts are not included
in the accompanying financial statements; however, the accounts from the Policemen’s and Fircmen's Retirement
Fund for the City of Anniston are included as a fiduciary fund.

Retirement Systems of Alabama

City employees, who elect to be included, are covered by the Retirement Systems of Alabama. This new plan is funded
by contributions from employees and the City. Two recent legislations will impact the City’s pension pian. The first
legislation is Act 2012-377, which created a new benefit plan for employees with no previous creditable retirement
service hired on or after January 1, 2013, referred as “Tier 2 employees.” Employees hired on or before January 1,
2013, are considered “Tier | Employees.” The second legislation is Act 2011-676, which allows an agency thc option
to adopt the higher employee contribution rates. As ofthe report date, the City has not elected to increase the employee
contribution rate.

“Tier 1" Employees

“Tier 1" employees are eligible and must participate in the State PERS. The pension plan provides pension
benefits, deferred allowances, and death and disability benefits. A member may retire after accumulating 25
years of service with the District or another entity covered by the state PERS. Benefits vest after 10 years of
service,

Employees who retire at or afier the age of 60, with ten or more years of service are entitled to pensiva
payments for the remainder of their lives equal annually to 2.0125% of the member’s average final service.
The final average compensation is the average salary during the three years in his last ten years of creditable
service for which such average is higher.

Pension provisions include deferred allowances whereby an employee may terminate his or her employment
with the City after accumulating 10 years of service but before reaching the age of 60. If the employee does
not withdraw his or her accumulated contributions, the employee is entitled to the applicable benefits upon
reaching the age of 60.
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
Retirement Systems of Alabama (continued)

Pension benefits include death benefits and disability benefits, whereby the disabled employee or surviving
spouse is entitled to receive annually an amount equal to 2.0125% of the member's average final
compensation multiplied by the number of years of his creditable service, reduced by ' of 1% for each month
by which his age at retirement or death is less than age 60 or his years of service are less than 30, if less, to a
maximum reduction of 25%. State statutes determine benefits. Employees of the City are required to pay
5% of their gross earnings to the pension plan. The City makes annual contributions to the pension plan
equal to the amount required by state statutes.

“Tier 2” Employees

“Tier 2" Employees are eligible and must participate in the state PERS. The pension plan provides pension
benefits, deferred allowances, and death and disability benefits. A member may retire after accumulating 10
vears of service with the City or another entity covered by the state PERS and attained the age of 62. Benefits
vest after 10 years of service.

Employees who retire at or afler the age of 62, with ten or more years of service are entitled to pension
payment for the remainder of their lives equa! annually to 1.65% of the member’s average final service. The
final average compensation is the average salary during the five years in his last ten years of creditable service
ior which such average is higher. The retirement benefit cannot exceed 80% of the Average Final Salary

Pension provisions include deferred allowances whereby an employee may terminate his or her employment
with the City afier accumulating 10 years of service but before reaching the age of 62. If the employee does
not withdraw his or her accumulated contributions, the employee is entitled to the applicable benefits upon
reaching the age of 62.

Pension benefits provide disability benefits and death benefits. A disabled employee is entitled to receive
monthly benefits which are calculated identically to those for service retirement. Death benefits prior to
retirement are calculated and paid to beneficiary(ies) based on the member’s age, service credit, employment
status and eligibility for retirement. State statutes determine benefits. Employees of the City are required to
pay 6% of their gross eamnings to the pension plan, The City makes annual contributions to the pension plan
equal to the amount required by state statutes. :

The Employees’ Retirement Systems was established as of October 1, 1945 under the provisions of Act 515, Acts
of Alabama 1945, for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other specified benefits for state
employees, state police and on an elective basis to all cities, counties, towns and quasi-public organizations. The
responsibility for general administration and operation of the Employees’ Retirement Systems is vested in the City of
Anniston, Alabarna. Benefit provisions are established by the Code of Alabama 1975, Sections 36-27-1 through 36-
27-103, as amended, Sections 36-27-120 through 36-27-139, as amended, and Sections 3627B-1 through 36-27B-6.

Authority to amend the plan rests with the Legislature of Alabama, However, the Legislatwe has granted the
Emplovzes’ Retirement System Board authority to accept or reject various Cost-Of-Living Adjustments (COLAS)
granted to retirees.

The Retirement Systems of Alabama issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Employees’ Retirement Systems of Alabama.
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

Retirement Systems of Alabama (continued)

Below is a chart summarizing the payroll, employer’s contributions and employees' contributions for the yez:tr
ended September 30, 2014. All contributions have been made.

Fiscal Year Ended Contributions
September 30 Employer Employee Total
2014 § 568,244 $ 558,393 $ 1,126,637

The following schedule is based on the actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2013 (most recent information
available) as provided by the Employees’ Retirement System of Alabama:

Summary of Employee Census Data
Effective For Period Beginning October 1, 2013

Number of active members 220
Annual compensation $ 7,417,861
Number of Retired members and beneficiaries 96
Annual Retirement allowance £ 1,330,983

Required Employer Contributions
Effective For Period Beginning October 1, 2013

Tier I Employees

Normal cost 1.04%
Accrued Liability 6.12%
Pre-retirement death benefit 0.14%
Administrative Expense 0.21%
Total 7.51%
7.5% Employer contribution factor (7.51% / 7.5%) 1.001333
8.5% Employer contribution factor (7.51% / 8.5%) 883529

Tier 2 Employees

Total 7.44%
6% Employer contribution factor (7.44% / 6%) 1.240000
7% Employer contribution factor (7.44% / 7%) 1.062857
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
Retirement Systems of Alabama (continued)

The chart below shows the annual pension cost which equaled the annual required contribution for the current
year and prior two years along with the percentage actually contributed by the City.

Percentage of

Annual Annual Pension Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ending _ Pension Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
September 30, 2011 $ 521,091 100% 5 -
September 30, 2012 526,195 100% -
September 30, 2013 606,636 100% -

As of the most recent valuation date, Seplember 30, 2012, the funded status of the Plan was as follows:

Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Liabilities Funded Unfunded Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) Ratio (1)/(2) (1)-(2) Payroll Payroll

9/30/2013 $19211,693 523,330,034 72.5% ($7,305,323) % 7,480,512 97.7%

The valuation was prepared using the eniry age normal actuarial cost method. An interest rate and projected salary
increases of 3.75%-7.25% were used for all purposes, together with other actuarial assumptions based on the
experience of the system. Since the previous valuation, there have been no amendments to the system affecting the
valuation.

Actuarial gains and losses are reflected in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, which is being amortized over a
twenty-year pertod. The amortization period is closed. The retirement plan is included in the financial report of the
Retirement Systems of Alabama. Copies of this report may be obtained from the Retirement Systems of Alabama,
P.O. Box 302150, Montgomery, Alabama 36130-2150.

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan net assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared
to past expeclations and new estimates are made about the future.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term
perspective.

Policemen’s and Firemen’s Retirement Fund for the City of Anniston

The Pelicemen’s and Firemen’s Retirement Fund is funded by contributions from employees cf the City. The plan
covers all sworn members of the Police and Fire Departments of the City. The Fund was substantially amended by
the State of Alabama with Act No. 2012-484, effective October 1, 2012. Retirement benefits are paid to those
members with 25 or more years (20 years if hired before May 29, 1979) equal to three percent of their finai three-year
average salary times their years of service up to a maximum of thirty years of service. Effective October 1, 2012,
emplovees with the earlier of attaining age 65 or 25 years of service are entitled to pension benefits equal of 2.5% of
compensation years of service on and after October 1, 2012, plus 3% of compensation of years of services, but not
greater than 30, less years of service on and after October 1, 2012. For additional information on pension benefits,
please, refer to the Policemen’s and Firemen's Retirement Fund’s audited financial statements.
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
Policemen’s and Firemen's Retirement Fund for the City of Anniston (Continued)

An actuarial valuation of the plan is made biannually; however, contribution amounts are prescribed by state law and
do not vary with the actuarial valuation. These contribution rates are as follows:

The most recent actuarial valuation was performed as of October 1, 2013, and contains the following information:

Valuation date October 1, 2013
Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level percent closed
Remaining amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method Market value/
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return* 8.0%

Projected salary increases* 5.5%

*Includes inflation at 3.0%

Below is a chart summarizing the payroll, employer's contributions and employees’ contributions for the year
ended September 30, 2014, All contributions have been made.

Fiscal Period Ending Employer Employee Total
September 30, 2014 £ 3,067,464 $1,122,595 $ 4,190,059

The following schedule is based on the actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2013 (most recent information available):

Summary of Employce Census Data

Number of active members 174
Annual compensation $ 7,826,324
Number of Retired members and beneficiaries 174
Annual Retirement allowance $4,119,624

Required Employer Contributions

Normal cost 14.7%
Accrued Liability 126.2%
Total 140.9%

The chart below shows the annual pension cost which equaled the annual required contribution for the current
year and prior two years along with the percentage actually contributed by the City.

Percentage of

Annual Annual Pension Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ending  _ Pension Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
September 30, 2013 $ 3,820,084 90.4% 401,545
September 30, 2012 1,949,960 100% -
September 30, 2011 1,979,022 100% -
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
Policemen’s and Firemen’s Retirement Fund for the City of Anniston (Continued)

As of the most recent valuation date, October 1, 2013, the funded status of the Plan was as follows:

Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Yalue of Liabilities Funded Unfunded Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) Ratio (1)/(2) (1)-(2) Payroll Payroll

10/1/2013 $23,890,513  $64,289,284 37.2% {$40,398,771) § 7,826,324 516.2%

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan net assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability.

Actuaria! valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared
to pdst expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term
perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan in effect as of October 1, 2012.

NOTE 10 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Description

Effective October 1, 2007, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The City, through its substantive
commitment to provide other post-employment benefits (OPEB), maintains a single-employer defined benefit plan to
provide cértain postretirement healthcare benefits to all former employees who have 25 years of continuous service,
regardless of age, or who have 10 years of continuous service and are age 60. Such benefits are available to spouses
or dependents of retiree until the spouse and / or other dependent attains Medicare eligibility.

Funding Policy

The City pays for postemployment healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. The City is studving the
establishment of trusts that would be used to accumulate and invest assets necessary to pay for the accumulated
liability. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the City. an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities {or funding excess) over a period of 30 years. The following table illustrates the components of
the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the City's net
QOPER obligation:
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NOTE 10 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)
Mentbership

The following schedule (derived from the most recent actuarial valuation report) reflects membership for the OPEB
Health Care Plan as of October 1, 2013

Active members 347
Retired members 82
Total 429

Contributions

The City contributed $735,624 to the OPEB Health Care Flan in fiscal year 2014. The annual required contribution
amount is determined using actuarial methods and assumptions approved by the Commission. The Council establishes

and may amend the funding policy for the OPEB Health Care Plan,

Annual Required Contribution $ 1,038,700
Annual OPEB Cost 1,038,700
Interest on net OPEB obligation 168,600
Adjustment on net OPEB cbligation (168,600}
Actual Contribution (735,624)
Increase in net OPEB obligation. 303,076
Net OPEB obligation, September 30, 2013 4,216,151

Net OPEB obligation, September 30, 2014

$ 4,519,227

Percentape
Fiscal Year of OPEB

Ended Annual Actual OPEB Cost Net OPEB

September 30, OPEB Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation
2008 $ 1,128,600 $ 475,500 42.13% $ 633,100
2009 1,129,000 458,800 41.52% 1,313,300
2010 922,200 281,200 30.49% 1,954,300
2001 967,400 313,900 32.45% 2,607,800
2012 1,232,200 397,917 32.29% 3,437,783
2013 1,296,400 512,332 39.50% 4216,151
2014 1,038,700 735,624 70.82% 4,312,227

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of October 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the funded status of the Plan was as follows:

Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Liabilities Funded Unfunded Covered of Covered
Date Assets {(AAL) Ratio (1)/(2) (1)-(2) Payroll Payroll
10/1/2011 - £ 13,679,400 0.0% (% 13,679,400) - 0.0%
10/1/2013 - £11,827,100 0.0% (% 11,827,100) - 0.0%
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NOTE 10 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)
Funding Status and Funding Progress (continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future, Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expeclations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective.
Calculations are based on the plan in effect at October 1, 2013. The assumptions used in the October 1, 2013 actuarial
valuation are as follows:

Cost Method Projected Unit Credit
Actuarial Asset Valuation Method Market Value of Assets
Assumed Rate of Return on Investments 4,00%

Medicat Cost Trend Rate 8.00%

Ultimate Medical Cost Trend Rate 8.00-5.00%

Year of Ultimate Trend Rate 2018

Amortization Method Level dollar, closed
Remaining Amortization Period 30 years

Payroll Inflation Rate 2.50%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, is to present
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

NOTE N DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Employees are also eligible to participate in the PEIRAF Deferred Compensation Plan of the Retirement Systems of
Alabama, Employees may defer a portion of their pre-tax compensation into this plan and are eligible to remove the
proceeds at retirement. The City does not contribute to this plan.

NOTE 12 RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, errors and omissions, job-related illnesses and
injuries, and natural disasters. Risk management is the process of managing the City’s activities to minimize the
adverse effects of certain types of losses and to obtain finances to provide for or restore the economic damages of
those losses. The City maintained insurance coverage with the Alabama Municipal Insurance Corporation. The City
believes the coverage is adequate to preclude any significant risk exposure. The City is self-insured for employee’s
medical coverage for claims up to an expected level. A specific stop loss agreement is in effect with an outside
insurance company. This will cover claims exceeding $125,000 per eligible employee per year with an outside
company. As of September 30, 2014, a liability for future claims is not recorded. The liability, if any, for this
contingency is measured in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Boards (FASB) Statement No. 5.
Expenses are recognized when incurred and offsetting revenues are recorded as a reduction against the applicable
expenditure. For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settlement
amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.

Ly
had



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 12 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Subsequent Event-Risk Management

Throughout the fiscal year ending September 30, 2014, the City retained insurance coverage under the tellowing
brokers and providers: Municipal Workers Compensation Fund, Inc. (MCWF) for workers™ compensation insurance,
Alabama Municipa! Insurance Corporation (AMIC} for liability insurance, and Insurance Planning Services (IPS) for
property insurance,

Effective November |, 2014, the City of Anniston was granted authorization by the State of Alabama Department of
Labor to operate as a self-insurer under the Alabama Workers’ Compensation Law and terminated coverage with
MCWF on March 15, 20135,

While the City maintains its Property Insurance coverage under IPS, during fiscal year 2014-2015, Anniston is
transitioning to General Liability and Workers' Compensation Insurance through Brit Global Specialty (“Brit”) as
brokered by Marsh, USA. Furthermore, the City engaged CCMSI Inc. to act as our third party administrator (TPA)
for all claims against the City. The City transitioned into the Brit policy after receiving notice from AMIC that it
would no longer cover claims made against municipal employees in their individual capacities. without regerd o
whether the acts were committed in the line and scope of their employment. AMIC’s policy amendment was prompied
by an Alabama Supreme Court ruling holding that the statutory municipal liability caps did not apply to individual
capacity claims made against municipal employees. Had the City renewed with AMIC, its employees would have
faced the potential of personal, uninsured risk for nonintentional acts committed in the line and scope of their
employment. The City's liability policy with Brit covers its employees without regard to whether the claim is
characterized as an individual or official capacity claim, which removes the risk the employees would have faced if
the City had renewed with AMIC. By combining its liability and workers compensation insurance with Brit, the City
was able to provide substantially better coverage for its employees, gain a measure of control over its claims process
and risk exposure, realize a financial benefit from enhanced risk management, and reduce its overall insurance costs.

The City carefully considered proposals before deciding on new coverages, including alternative duty-to-defend risk
policies, and we are confident that these changes do not increase the exposure of the City to settlements, claims, vr
carry any other adverse financial effect. The City hired a risk manager to seek out and mitigate areas of exposure.
Finally, premiums have been reduced and the maximum expected costs are similar under both the old and new
insurance coverages. The City simply has more control over their loss reduction and prevention program

NOTE 13 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Grant Contingencies

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment byv grantor agencies. Any
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicabie funds.

The City is a defendant in various litigations of which legal counsel and City management are of the opinton thal none
will have a material adverse effect an the financial statements of the City. These actions include both ascerted and
unasserted claims. The City’s legal counsel has advised that damages on any asserted claims, should an unfavorable
Judgment be reached, will be within the limits of the City’s insurance coverage and therefore should not impact upon
municipal assets. The City’s maximum liability is estimated to be the $5,000 insurance deductible for claims. No
accrual has been included in these financial statements for this matter.
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NOTE 14 - ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, This
statement specifies the information required to be disclosed by governments that exiend nonexchange financial
guarantees. In addition, this statement requires new information to be disclosed by governments that receive
nonexchange financial guarantees. It requires a government that extends a nonexchange financial guarantee to
recognize a liability when qualitative factors and historical data, if any, indicate that it is more likely than not that the
government will be required to make a payment on the guarantee. This statement also requires a government that has
issued an obligation guaranteed in a nonexchange transaction to recognize revenue to the extent-of the reduction in its
guaranteed liabilities, and also requires a government that is required to repay a guarantor for making a payment on a
guaranteed obligation or legally assuming the guaranteed obligation to continue to recognize a liability untit legally
released as an obligor. This statement was effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2013, and the
provisions of this statement are required to be applied retroactively, with the exception of disclosure related to
cumulative amounts paid or received in relation to a financial guarantee. The Board implements GASB Statement
No. 70 for the year ended September 30, 2014, There was no impact on these financial statements as 2 result of the
implementation of GASB Statement No, 70.

In June 2012, GASB adopted Statement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, which is directed thward
improving financial reporting for state and local governmental pension plans. It amends GASB Statement 25,
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Comiribution Plans, as well
as GASB Statement 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts. The
Policemen and Fircinen’s Pension Fund’s financial statements have incorporated the requirements of GASB Statement
67.

(GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—-an amendment of GASB Statement No.
27, estublishes standards of accounting and financial reporting, but not funding or budgetary standards, for defined
benefit pensions and defined contribution pensions provided to the employees of state and local governmental
employers through pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements. This statement
replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers,
as well ag the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided
through pension plans within the scope of the statements. The requirements of Statement No. 68 apply to the financial
statements of all state and local governmental employers whose employees (or volunteers that provide services 1o state
and local governments) are provided with pensions through pension plans that are administered through wusts or
equivalent arrangements as described above, and to the financial statements of state and local governmental
nonemployer contributing entities, that have a Jegal obligation to make contributions directly to such pension plans.
This statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and
deferred inflows of resources, and expenses/expenditures related to pensions. Note disclosure and RSI requirements
about pensions also are addressed. For defined benefit pensions, this Statement identifies the metheds and
assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuaiial
present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service.

The calculation of pension contributions is unaffected by the change. However, when adoptad will result in the
restatement of the City’s Fiscal year 2014 government-wide financial statements to reflect the reporting of net pension
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources for its qualified pension plan and the
recognition of pension expense in accordance with the provisions of the statement.

Management has not yet determined the financial statement impact of the pronouncement.
GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations improvés tinancial
reporting by addressing accounting and financial reporting for govenment combinations and disposals of goverament

operations. The term “government combinations” is used to refer to a variety of arrangements including mergers and
acquisitions. Mergers include combinations of legally separate entities without the exchange of
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NOTE 14 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

significant consideration. Government acquisitions are transactions in which a government acquires another entity,
or its operations, in exchange for significant consideration. Government combinations also include transfers of
operations that do not constitute entire legally separate entities in which no significant considerations is-exchanged.
Transfers of operations may be present in shared service arrangements, reorganizations, redistricting, annexations,
and arrangements in which an operation is transferred to a new government created to provide those services.
Management has not yet determined the financial statement impact of the pronouncement,

GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 amends Statement No. 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize
a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement
date of the beginning net pension liability. Management has not yet determined the financial statement impact of the
pronouncement.

NOTE 15 EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM

On August 13, 2013, the City passed Resolution 13-R-192, which authorized an Early Retirement Incentive Program
offcred 10 all “Eligible Employees”. To be considered an “Eligible Employee™, a person must (a) be a full-time
employee of the City of Anniston, in good standing, as of date of the Resolution; (b) be at least age 54 or attain the
age 54 to later than November 21, 2013; and (c) be eligible for retirement benefits through his or her respective
retirement sysiem as of November 21, 2013, The program was not retroactive. Eligible employees who agreed 1o the
written Retirement Incentive Agreement and Release received continued participation in the City’s Heaith Insurance
Plan for five years or until the employee is no longer eligible to participate in the plan.

The City had 16 of the 64 eligible employees who took advantage of the one-time early retirement incentive. Asa
result of the incentive, the City was able to reduce budgeted salaries and benefits expenditures approximatety
$ 628,000, less any new hires. The City projects these savings to carry forward into future years. '

NOTE 16 ANNISTON INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Pricr to Qctober 1, 2013, the Anniston Industrial Development Board (Board) was a discretely presented component
unit of the City. On July 1, 2014, the Board voted to transfer all restricted and unrestricted funds in the amount of
$ 572,606 to the City. After the transfer of the funds to the City, the Board was left with no assets or liabilities nor
net position. The City Manager has assigned these funds to Economic Development.

NOTE 17 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
As discussed in Note 1 (A) and Note 14, the implementation of GASB 65 required that debt issuance costs, with the
exception of prepaid insurance costs and refunding of debt, be recognized as an expense in the period incuired. The

comulative effect of this statement retroactively was a decrease in net position in the government-wide financial
stalements in the amount of § 200,192,
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NOTE 18 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTION

Jav Jenkins, City of Anniston Council Member, is a partner at Munroe + Jenkins Architects, LLC (the “Firm™). Mr.
Jenkins was appointed to City Council in 2011 to fill a vacant seat. He won a full term in 2012. The Department of
Muscum Operations was created in March 2014 by the City of Anniston (the “City™). This depariment is responsible
for operating and maintaining the Anniston Museum of Natural History, the Berman Museum, and the Longleaf
Botanical Gardens (the “Gardens™).

The Museum first retained the Firm in 2010, prior to Mr. Jenkins appointment to the City Council, to provide master
planning services. The Firm also assisted the Museum with subsequent phases by securing mechanical and electrical
enginecrs to design the fire sprinkler system, fire alarm system, and new lighting at no charge. In an effort to save
time and money, the Museum approached the Firm in May of 2014 to provide architectural services for bathroom
renovations at the Gardens as a continuation of the master planning services. Prior to agrezing to perlorns the services,
the Firm contacted and received approval from the State of Alabama Ethics Commission

The fee for this project is 8% of the construction contract. Mayor and Council approved the construction contract of
$203,894, making the Firm’s fee $16,311.52. Council member Jenkins recused himself from the vote. As of September
30, 2014, the total amount of the contract is outstanding.

NOTE 19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing the financial statements, management evaluated subsequent events through May 20, 2013, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued, and have determined that no subsequent event, except as discussed
in the notes above, has occurred that requires additional disclosures in the Notes to the Financial Statements,
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Retirement Systems of Alabama

UAALasa
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation  Actuarial Value  Liabilities (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets* Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll of
(a) (b)! (b-a) (a/b) (c) {(b-a)/c)
9/30/2008 19,966,441 23,330,034 3,363,593  B85.6% 7,696,743 43.7%
9/30/2009 19,744,665 24,077,674 4,333,009 B2.0% 7,466,202 58.0%
9/30/2010° 19,237,752 25,741,050 6,503,298 74.7% 7,367,995 88.3%
9/30/2011% 18,586,518 26,010,836 7,424,318  71.5% 7,417,861 100.1%
9/30/2012% 17,995,708 25,210,299 7,214,591  71.4% 7,265,216 99.3%
9/30/2013%¢ 19,211,693 25,517,016 7,305,323  72.5% 7,480,512 97.7%

I Reflects liability for cost of living benefit increases granted on or after October 1, 1978,

? Reflects the impact of Act 201 1-27, which closes the DROP program to new applicants after March 24, 2011.

? Reflects the impact of Act 2011-676, which increases the member contribution rates by 2.25% beginning
October 1, 2011, and by an additional 0.25% beginning October 1, 2012.

*+ Reflects changes in actuarial assumptions.

% Reflects changes to interest smoothing methodology.

“ Reflects implementation of Board Funding Policy.

* The actuarial value of assets was set equal to the market value of assets as of September 30, 2012
Market Value of Assets as of September 30, 2013.

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Policemen’s and Firemen's Fund

Actuarial Actuarial Value Actuarial Unfunded  Funded Ratio Covered UAALasa

Valuation of Assets Accrued AAL 1)/2) Payroll Percentage of

Date 10/1 Liability (UAAL) Covered Payroll

(AAL)
(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a) / ()}

2013 $23,890513 § 64,289,284  § 40,398,771 37.2% $ 7,826,324 516.4%
2012 21,101,844 61,571,576 40,469,732 34.3% 7,687,605 526.4%
2011 19,628,595 59,008,960 39,380,365 33.3% 7,635,932 515.7%
2010 21,152,894 57,954,447 36,801,553 36.5% 8,010,438 459.4%
2009 20,471,581 55,360,777 34,889,196 37.0% 7,854,449 444.2%
2007 27,089,478 49,792,153 22,702,675 54.4% 6,665,540 340.6%
2005 24,632,743 42,810,623 18,177,880 57.5% 6,249,403 290.9%
2003 25,704,942 39,873,805 14,168,863 64.5% 5,565,899 254.6%

2001 23,846,591 38,531,561 14,684,970  61.9% 5,647,923 260.0%
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Note: See assumptions used for these schedules disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

OPEB Heath Care Plan

Actuarial Actuarial Value Actuarial Funded Over (Under) Annuasl UAALasa
Valuation of Assets Accrued Ratic  Funded (UAAL) Covered Percentage of
Date Liability (AAL)  (1)/(2) 2)-(1) Payroll Covered Payrol!
(n (2) (3) C) (5) (6)

10/1/2007** - $ 12,216,500 0.00% $(12,216,500) $ 13,085,683 -93.36%
10/1/2009 - 10,135,000 0.00% (10,135,000} 13,342,472 -75.96%
10/1/2011 - 13,679,400 (.00% (13,679,400) N/A 0.00%
10/1/2013 - 11,827,100 0.00% (11,827,100) 14,003,100 84.46%

Note: See assumptions used for these schedules disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

**First year of implementation
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Policemen & Firemen's Fund — Required Supplemental Information as Required by GASB 67.

POLICEMEN AND FIREMEN’S RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITIY AND RELATED RATIOS

This schedule will be updated each year until a 10-year history is accumulated. GASB 67 was effective for year
ending September 30, 2014; therefore information is not available for year ended September 30, 2013,

Year Ending September 30, 2014

Total pension liability

Service Cost $1,105,270
interest 5,054,431
Changes of benefit terms 131,764
Differences between expected and actual experience 248,886
Changes of assumptions 43,617,061
Benefits payments, including refunds of member contributions (4.428,334)
Net change in total pension liability 45,729,078
Total pension liability - beginning 64,289 284
Total pension liability — ending (a) $110,018,362

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer $3,067,464
Contributions - employee 1,122,594
Net investment income 2,720,956
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions {(4,428,334)
Administrative Expense (132,727
Other Q0
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,349.953
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 23,890,513
Plan fiduciary net position — ending (b) 26,240,466
Net pension liability — ending (a) — (b) $83,777.896
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 23.9%
Covered employee payroll $8,018,529
Net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 1044 8%

Notes to Schedule:
The beginning total pension liability includes mortality improvements to 2013. The ending total
pension liability includes mortality improvements to 2014,

The beginning total pension liability is determined using the assumed rate of investment return of
8.0% per year (net of investment and administrative expenses). The ending total pension liability is
determined using the 3.67% single discount rate.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

POLICEMEN AND FIREMEN'S RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Year Ending September 30, 1014 pilh) 2 won 010 1049 2008 2007 1006 1008
Actuasially determined

contribution $ 9930690 § 9735007 5 B797577 5 8065253 5 5883520 5419320 $ 1917333 0§ 123024 S 1190772 % | i043ti
Centhibutions in relavon 1o

actuanally determined

contribution 3.067.464 2. 738004 11.854.718 1.212.363 1.233.60 1,207,937 1,009 448 1,072,762 1,002 805 85,677
Contnbunions deficiency

{excess) $ 6863226 $ 7000001 $ 7612862 5 6M52850 § 4649890 § 2911383 £ B|7EES $§ 163362 § 187967 §  U1BAEN
Covered employee payrol) $ 8018529 § 7,729,019 § 765243 57666390 5 7823830 §TIT2280 5 6,7730)0 $ 6643830 § 6400000 § 6373280
Actuanially determined

comnbution as a perceniage of

cavered-employee payroll 123 8% 126 0% 15.0% 105 2% 75 1% 54 4% 28 1% 15 &% 1B 6% I 8%
Actual contribulions as a

percenage of covered-

emplevee payrofl JE ¥ 315 4% 15 5% 15 8% 15 8% 16 0% 16 2% 16 1% 15 T 15 s
Nates ta Schedule

The actusnsily detetmined contnbuton includes the 1etal funding deficiency m each yoar  Each year's contnbution deh ludes the pay of deficiny 1n prcr years

Iiethous and assumptions used 1o determine sontmbulians.

Actuanal caost method Entry age

Amorization method Level percent of payrofl assumeng 3% annual 1otal payroll increases

Ramasning amortizmtion period 30 years Tor cach new base

Asset valuation method Market value

Inflation 3%

Salary Increases 5 5%, including inflation

Investment rate of return B 0% net of and ad ive luding mflation

Retemeni age
Monaluy

Year Ending September 30,

See *Descriplion of A F and Methads for the e p
Mortliy 15 assumed under the RP 2000 Blue Collar Monality Table (se1 forward 10 years for disabled b

) with

POLICEMEN AND FIREMEN’S RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS

This schedule will be updated each year until a 10-year history is accumulated.

Annual money-weighted rate of

2014 11.65%
2013 15.12%
2012 17.53%
2011 0.25%
2010 7.48%
2009 -4.40%
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
Total
Nommajor Noamajor Nosmajor Notimajor
Debi Serviee Special Revenue Capiisl Improvement Goveramesial
Fuad Funds Fund Fends

ASSETS

Cash . 181646 241634

Invenimenis HI.e50 341,550

Cash bond on had 11 e 2180

Taxea recenvable E . = .

Accounts recenablle . . ;

Notes recorvable 1,058 651 1,038 651

Other reesivable - 11,583 41,553

Prepaid ictnig 51,407 - 5407

Drue from ovher Tunds - HI204 154,337 506541

Duc from agency Tunds . . .

Duc from cther govornments HD,751 . 110,753

Revtneted cash - . 2 2

TOTAL ASSETS - 5.004.456 154,339 5,164,295

LYARILITIES

Accanmily pasable 153,774 18 134004

Accrued bz L]t L3

Cush bend abihities 1eens - 120,015

B Lo other lunds 1367458 i 1,734,552

Dus o pgern fds 45,132 ) 12

Due (e othel g cranents . 0 5 i

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,697,901 372358 100,25

DEFERRER INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1o sarvaad ih fuzire peraxs 635344 H15B

Fees crdbecied v adh nca. - “

TOTAL DEFREHRED INFLOWS (F RESOURCES 633334 £33 344

FUND Bal.AivCES

Nonspendenle
Prepand Hems - .

Restazad for . 1
Sl 131633 . (LIRS L]
Publsc safcay 19.053 sy
Read wnpro ssncnls 1,280,933 [(Msiw [ FRIE!
Courl actnitics = R
Cultue end reczeation . - -
Hows ng stid des elopmeni - - -
Coapital Ouley . (144,500, [{ELRIL]

Commitied for - -

Cwhure 1nd recreation - 213 91211
Capital Projects - -

Agsigne lor . .
luusaug and dey elcpment - 624314 nid 4

Urasuigned - L7037 1178037

TOTAL FLMND BALANCES (DEFICIT) . 2676211 (215.0141 2.458.1%2

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FLND
BALANCES - 5004 456 154,139 3 184295

—

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FCR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

REVENUES
Imergu crumental
Fines and forfciurea
Chargd for services
Taxet
Imerest carned
Muscellancous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITIRES
Cieneral government
Juhcnl
Publ safcty
Publsc works
Caliure and recreation
Pullic laclites
Housing end developmsni
Capital qullmy
Detn Savice

Frincipal

Intorest

Pond Exchange Cioad
Frtcal & pent Fox

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (PEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENIHTURES

OTHEH FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Priminaln siaum sekic of seacts
Tranvicys
Trisknoa

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
STIWRCES (USES)

NET CIANGI IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES (DEFICTT), BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END

‘Total
Nesmaper Noamajor Noamasjor Ncamsjor
Debit Service Special Revenue Capital Improvemest Geovernmental
Fond Funds Fund Fouds

1,253,637 35454 1.260.0H

. 18299 . 745,249

131083 131,183

143411 * 133401

- 13,764 104 952 120,716

- 304271 363138 340588

- 2519 517 150,721 2T rm

- ITTAT? 17077

. 1,242,156 . 1,241.156

- 497659 7834 LR

. 1,049,239 : 1449 158

61408 16471 1117

" 292874 - 293474

- 260,917 §907 Myl

iy . 248 600 bUERI L

% 1M v ElLTE R 46T

z 3050 3450

352.183 3.786.250 f52.207 1,20 bJ0
(132.153) (1,196,113} {471 4k0) {2.080.972)

IN2.153 1420226 56325 2288
. {1.279.310) (82360 (i 287 54Y)

312,183 140913 438204 971345
. (1,035,820 23397} LW

] 1732011 (194,822, 3,557 24

- Ilﬁ'fﬁlll fZII.UI‘)I ﬁf:l’.l‘l.‘

See accompanying notes (o the basic financial stalements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

ASSETS

Cach and cash squivalents
Invertments

Cash bonds on hand
Tanes recenvablc
Acrourts recoryable
Motes recoivable

Other recervable

Prepand iems.

Thue from other funds
Dt frem sgen sy funds
[he frem other poverhments
Restricied cash

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Accounts pavable
Accrucd abitiney

Cash Bl abasuies
Duc to other funds

Duc 1o agency funds

D 1 the ‘por crmenenda

TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Tcime spmon e perwads
Feoi exfigetod an sdvine::

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES

MNonspendabke
Prepasd tems
Rastncied for
Judiasd
Puble safenn
Hoad wuprovemens
Courl activines
* Cultwre mad recreabion
Hougap and developmei
Copal Owtlay
Lomrmined for
Culture and recreavion
Capnial Projects
Asigned Le
Housmg and devclopment
Linassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (REFICIT)

TOTAL

Department of
Musenm
Operstions

Seven
Cent Gas
Fund

Alabsma
Trwwi
Fund

W13
74 900

43 ML

41,00l

hLpE ]

3027

IEY. 118

L6524
—

(REN LH

12512

123592

L>a1H

™I

(T92ITy

4 1144

254013

it el K

(79217

40,053

234,00

54,138

54,675

48,053

6525

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stalements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

ASSETS

Cash and cash cqun alents
Invesiments

Cash bends on hand
Taxes reamvable
Acoounts recen sble
Notea reecivable

Crthet reeeivabl:

Prepand nemy

Drue from other funds

Druc from agency funds
D¢ fram othst povertunenty
Restncied cash

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Accounts pasatle
Accneed habilitcs

Cash Bonds liabihties
Prt 1o ovher Ruwds

Due 1o apency furds

Duc 1o cther gos crnments

TOTAL LIABILYTIES

DEFERREN INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
e earand in flawe penods
Fra cnilicstod i advance

TOTAL VEFERRER INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
FUND BALANCES

Nouspendable
Prepaid riems
Restiicied fior
Judasl
Pull duley
Rod wapwu aoments
Coun scin tics
Custure ardl comation
Haunng and devlopment
Copoal Chufas
Comnitled (v
« Cuitwe a4 rocroation
Capital Proyecta
Agnighed T
Housing and development
Unasnigne]

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DERICIT)

TOTAL

Corrections
Fund

[ ]1H
WL

Emergesc)
Shelier Grast
Fuud

Federat
Seited Assers
Fand

1018365
266 830

450,452

0241

6413

4 g

1.191.803

§33.63)
—

21031

153

467,637

1,191 ke

467,637

61158

AT

1,291,808

1,291 BUE

62,138

21038

313,631
i

E1.01n

See accompanying notes 10 the basic financial stalements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

State Public Bulletproof Alrpor
Seized Assets Salety Gramt Vest Grant Wildlife
Fund Fund Fund Fond

ASSETS

Cash and cash cquivalcnis 13,745

[mestments

Cash bonds on hand

Taxca reecavable

Accoums reconvable

Notes recmivable

Other raceav abile

Prepuid nems

Due Nom other lunds 10.236
Dz from agenzy funds

Dhuc from other govommenis 5644 T
Restnered cash

TOTAL ASSETS 13,748 10.234 5.644 57.716
—

LIABILITIES

Arcouns payable
Accrued finbilities
Cash Bunds liabdit:ex
Pt 10 ether fumds 13,395 3730 6,850 MW A09
hae o sgosay funas . .

Drue 10 mher govornments - = ‘.

TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,345 3730 6,850 3040

DEFERRED INFI OWS OF RESOURCES
Jacome earaal in future penods . - -
T'oea collectod tn ach ance - - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLUWS OF RENOURCES . _ = 5
FUND BALANCES

Nosupendable
Propasd aerm. . . =
Resinoed fur
hlicial ' - - -
+ Pubii salen L5 {37 W} (1 20hp
Read impravemenia 175U
Curt setiniuet
Cutlure asd recreaiion
Houz.ng @.d dvclopment
Caprial Quiley
Commiticd for
Crlturs an ) peeristicn
Capial Projeety
Agsigned [
lmzsing and davelcpment
U'nazsigned

TOTAL FLAD BALANCES {DEFICIT) {150y 27.197 {1.206) 27.3U7

TOTAL 13,745 10.236 5.044 17714

See accompanying notes to the basic financia! statements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Airport JAG Recovery JAG JAG
Grant 1009 Act Granl 100% Grant 1610 Gram
Fond Fund Fund Fead

ASSETS

Cash and cash cqun alems
Imvettacis

Cash bords on hand
Toves raxvable
Accounta recenyable
Notzs recevabk

Other recenable

Prepad itoms

D from other funds
Duc from agency hands
Duet freen ogher govemments
Restrcied cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Aicounls prvable
Arcried lisbibines

Cash Bonda liabilnies
D 10 other funda

Dhc 10 egemey Tunds

Duc 1o viher guvermmenty

TOTAL LIABIL'TIES

DEFFRRED FYFIL.OWS OF RESOURCTS
Incuse e ntid v fulure peiods -
Fres ctflecand ; act-arnce .

TOTAL BEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
FUND BALANCES

Nontpendable
Picpad dema
Resstant for
Judicial
Pubhc salety
Road impros smenis
Court stirvibiey
Cutlise and recreanon
Housing ard de- clopment
Capital Cutlay
Commutted for
Culture and recicabyon
Capital Prcgee
Asnigned for
Housing ard developmen
Unassigned

TOTAL FL.ND BALANUES (DEFICIT)

TOTAL

See accompanying nates to the basic financial siatements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

ASSETS

Lash s cash oquisalents
Investments

Cazh bords on hand
Thaes recenable
Accoumy recetvable
Hotzs rweenable

Cther reecivable

Prepad itoma

Do fromm other fuody
e from agenoy funds
e frem other governments
Reztncied cazh

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Arceunty paabic
Accrual lisbtliues

Cash Fonds irzbrliticy
Due o other funds

Dus w sgewy fmds

Duc 1 other gin cmments

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERHED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Incon cam s in fiftere peods
Faz; callennd i advance

TOTAL DEFERHED INFLOWS OF HESOLRCES
FUND BALANCES

MNonsperdable
Prepaid riena
Rastncied fox
Judserad
Public salety
Road ingwrovemenis
Court agyihies
Culture tad rectealien
Housing smd deyciopment
Capitai Cualey
Committed fcr
Cuitere and rocration
Capital Projects
Assigned for
Housing and deselopment
Linnssigned

FOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT

TOTAL

JAG
1001 Gramt
Fund

JAG
2011 Grant
Fuad

JAG
2013 Grant
Fusd

JAG
i Grasl
Fund

1 1%

1,180

LY

1518

185

1.53%

1543

Li%0

{1,373

[2443)

(2443

(1318

FLall

See nccompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

ASSETS

Cash and cmsh equie slemis
Invesemeny

Cush bonds on hand
Taxes recervable
Actimnis recens abl:
Notcs recenable

Other receivable

Prepsid items

e lrom other funds

Duc f1om agency funds
D from olher gon cimments
Ketnewed cah

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIFS

Accounts payable
Accrucd sisbihites

Coah Bonds Lisbiditacs
et 1oy ey flands

Crue 1o syeney funds

Due 10 othes overnmenis.

TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRERN INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

brcera exred in funste perinds.
Fecn cuilesusd m advance

TOTAL DEFERHED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES

Nimspendsbic
Prepand tom
Reatncied for
Judicial
Pubhc salery
Houd ipprovemems
Count sctrrilsey
Cv'ture wned recreaon
Hemstymgp it developety
Capial Outlay
Committed for
Culture.and recresiion
Capial Projects
Assigned ot
Huunng and development
Unasngned

TOTAL FUNU BALANCES (BERICIT)

TOTAL

Victoria
Ciry
Fund

City
Court Cemetary
Fuad Fuud

Special
Drog Task
Faree Fupd

41,343

233,708 -

21.3%0 .

67,181

2392

237

40,553

307,780 %

267,335

41ATS

128015 .
. 432 0%
45,132 -

3Ea04

346,543

41,853

176,147 432,050

377,747

131633 =

{332,050)

R LR

131.633 (432000

(e

41,553

307,740

167,153
FLEN

See accompanying notes to the basic financiol statements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
Total
Drug Tazk UDAG Noamajor
Foree Office Revolving Loan Special Reveswe
Fund Fuad Fuily
ASSETS
Cash and cash equn slenis 43,97 HLI#? 2941645
Imvestmenny 341,850
Cash bonds on hand 21.8%0
Tares reeenvable -
Accounts recenable .
Nty recen able LS 1058 633
Other receivable 41,553
Prepasd nemn S1L407
Duc from other funds 4421
Due from ageney funds .
Dt from other g ormmcnls 16,783
Restncied cash -
TOTAL ASSETS 548.047 512491 5.009.950
LIABILITIES
Accounts Fayablc EL 3 33 It |
Acerucd hiatnhiies LH
Cash Bond: Tubililics - 120,05
Due 10 other funds Ay o000 3307455
Due io agoney Tands . . am,132
D 10 other gevernments . -
1
TOTAL LIARILITIES 249037 30322 L5781
BEFERRED INFI OWS OF RESOURCES
1 xome eaned in fieure penods 168,207 £15 B4
Fres cellemed in sovarce .
TO1 AL DEFEMRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 168,207 15,540
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendabke
Propasd toms.
Regtrgtest e
Julical . 131,633
Publsc safeny 14 Esd (LX)
Rcad impryvements . 1298433
Court actmities
Lol ant peercation i
Huupng, m.d dovelopment
Caoital Ouley
Commitied {ot -
Culizre and rocreation T3
Capital Propeis %
Asmgned for -
Housing and den clopment 562,156 624,314
Ungasigned {170,037}
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 140853 362156 o761
TOTAL 348,007 12998 5.0 456
— =

See accompanying noles to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Deparimest of
Museum Guasoline
Operations Fund

Seven
Cent Gas
Fuad

Alsbams
Trust

Fund

HEVENUES
Ioiergorermumenial 44,300
Fines and forfeiures
Charges for scrces 131,183
Taxes
Ertereal carmed 1150
Miseellanesus 250,900

62,983

R0426

12 AR

TOTAL REVENUES 478533

EXPENRITURES
General government
Judicial
Public tafcty
Public works
Culture and recreation 1044 REH
‘rubilic facilies
Housing and de clopment
Capuad ouilay L WEL)
D' Servier

Principal

Inweren

Bond Exchange Cost
Fiscal Apent Fee

62913

4

20426

43 343

143 150

N

kALt

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,148,013

AL

43348

- 403.0668

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER ENPENDITURES {765 480

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Fracesds "o seie of asscis 1]
Trawfasin 600,135
Transery (=gl L]

(341.126)

247960

{13.122)

{247 966)

{207 210)

L1 P L]

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 600138

241966

{247 96465

(30.747)

MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (169,145)

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BECINNING 960,354

{93,160)

13,943

{261,088}

309,143

(296,257

550210

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT). END 791.213

{19.2)7)

40,055
i

254,013
—

See sccompanying notes to the busic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Emergency Federat
Corrections CDBG Shelter Grant Selzed Asseis
Fand Fungd Fund Fuad

HEYENUES
Iruergon ernmental 260,337
Fincs and forfmiuncs 1243581
Charges for servess
Tous
nterest earmed (M Pi 1621
Miscellaneous 950

TOTAL REVENLES 12541 263,904

EXPENDITURES
General government
Judcrab
Pultlr: safery [L4] T
Public works.

Culture s} recrestion
Public facilibes
Housing and devclopment MG .
Capinal outlay YT ]
Deby Service
Pruscapal
Imeres
Bond Exchange Cosl
Fiszal Agent Fee

TOTAL EXPENM FURES 111] 291540 - ! 37248

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPEMDITURES 323.29x (16930 (37.295]

OTHER FINANT G SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds froen sake of assew
Tramviers

. L
Traarfons wad (577,548} =

TOTALOTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (377.545) - 142

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (252.250) (28,930 [T} (3120%1

FUND RALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING 1.344.138 91096 {14 34333

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END 1.291.808 52,554 - 11034
——— —

See accompanying notes to the basic financinl statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 340, 2014

State Public Bulletprool Airport
Seized Assely Salety Grant Vest Gramt Wildlife
Fund Fund Fund Fund

REVENLES
Imerges erpmental L] [{*1 &7 S
Fines and forfeawres
Charges for 1en iexs
Tavex
Interest camed
Mrscelintrensy

TOTAL REVENUES - 049 6.I8¢C 417 509

EXPENDITURES
Cinstal govemment
Judicral
Public safety 123 = 12,571 479 435
Public works
Colure end recreaton
Publiz lecsties
Housing and development = s
Capitsl oulley . EE
Dein Service
Prmcipal
Interest
Bond Exchange Cost
Fiscal Ageni Fee

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 123 4,324 11572 435443

ENCESS (PEFICIENCY) OF REVENLES
OVER EXPENDITURES (125 4515 (h286) {21.974)

OTHER FThANCING SOURCES (UELS)
Froceris fiom sk ¢f assels - . - -
Transicn i = s 6.206 44201
Transferoul r o

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES {USES) 5 5 6,246 2200

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {125} 33523 17307

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT). BECINNING (2%) 1.032} §1.206)

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT). END {150} {27,107} {1 .2U6) 17.307

See accompanying notes 1o the basic finoncial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Aldrport JAG Recovery JAG JAG
Grant 2009 Act Grant 2009 Grant 1010 Gramt
Fund Fuad Fund Fund

REVENUES
Inigrgovemmental
Frrea and forfeiures
Chatges fer servicey
Taxca
Interest eamed
Muscellancous

TOTAL REYENUES

EXPENDITURES
General grvemment
Judeial . R
Public salety ur T
Fublic worka
Culture ant recreanon
Public facilivs
Housing am{ desclopment
Capial putlay
Detn Senvice

Principal

Inicresl

Ba Exchange Cost
Fraeal Agent Foe

TOTAL EXPENINTURES . bxi') #1

EXCESS IDEFICIENCY) OF HEVENUES
QVER EXPENGITURES . ) (A1

UITHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Procesds from salc ol s . - -
Transfersm i k]

Tranafors ow {27.307) {948

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) {27,307} | K11 b>1) B {Y6)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (21.307) 781 53 (9

FUND BALANCES (DEFT{1T), BECINNING 21307 (1.341) [R1E1) Yu

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END

See accompanying noles to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONNMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

JAG JAG JAG JAG
2010 Grast 1012 Genmt 243 Gramt 2014 Grart
Fund Fund Fund Fund

REVENUES
Intergavenumental L] 4 540
Funes and foefenures
Charges for scresces
Taves
leueeess earmed
Muscellsncous

TOTAL REVENUES 6935 . 34544

EXPENIITURES
General government
Judicaal - . .
Pubbc safcty 231 57 EIRY )
Public works . - -
Culure and recresiion
Public Ircibitics
Housing end development
Capilah putisy
Dt Servics
Princioal
I'eyest
Bond Exchangs Comt
Fiscal Apont Fee

TOTAL EXPENIMTURES 2l 467 LRI

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES L (467) {2447)

OTHER FINANC NG SOURCES (USES)
Pruceeds (tom see & sisti -
Transfers s 17
Tiansfers o .

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOVRCES (USES) 2717

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 2421 (467) 2443}

FUND BALAXCES {DEFICIT), BEGENNING (8.421) {LO71)

FUND BALANCES (PEFICIT). END - {1534} (1443

Sece accompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2014

Victoria Ciry Special
City Court Cemelery Drug Task
Foad Fund Fund Force Fusd

REVENUES
Bitergon crumental =
Fines and forfenures . #1.5%H
Charpes for senaces -
Taxcs
Fntcres camed .
Miseeliareeua 22423

bl R

TOTAL REYENLES 2243 6).9% . e ST

EXPENDITURES
General governmeni
Judicat . .
Pubhic safcty - . EELEY
Public woeks
Culture and 1ecreation .

Public facilitses ied, it
Housing amd development
Caprtal outlay
Deb Service
Principal
Inievest
Bond Exchange Cost
Fracal Agemt Fee

TOTAL EXPENDITURES od.o8 - = . 614,554

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
UYER EXPENDI TURES {42.135) 61996 {363.03K)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Broceeds Femoale of sisos . . .
Translers:n 42,335 - 4l 69
Tramian az *

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SULRCES (USES) 4145 . . 161,649

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - 63,996 - b 1A

FUNT BALANCES {DEFICIT), BEGINNING o 67.617 (432.050) (209.003)

FUND BALANCES (REFICIT), END - 131,633 (432,050} {140,343}

See accompanying noles to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

REVENUES
[ergovermmenial
Fines and lorfentures
Charges for senvices
Taxes
Trereat earmes)
Miscellancous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENMTURES
Crencral goy omenent
Juderal
Public safery
Public werks

* Calture amd recseation
Public facilities
Huusing and der clopment
Capial outlay
Debd Serviee

Principal

Interest

Bond Exchange Cost
Fiseal Agemy Fez

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHEK FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Procanils (rom sale of a1ty
Translees in
Teanslers out

TUTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES {USES)

KET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND HALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES (REFICIT), END

Total
Drug Task UDAG Noamajor
Faorce Office Revolvieg Loan Special Reveaws
Frud Fund Funds

1.281017

356,902 745,194

131083

143,411

2 L1 ] 1A

3{4.273

56 904 64 2519517

ITTRTT

119294 F.242, )50

497,689

5 1,049,959

. . 64508

128 292974

K0T

119.296 128 3,786,250
17608 o {1.196.723)

1 430,220
(337,640 {..279.313)
{337.64%) (LS
(100,041} T LRI B

140,44 561.4_39_ 31712011

I-ﬂ)ilﬂ 362134 267021

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements
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COMPLIANCE SECTION
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Kemp & Associates, CPA PC

Certified Public Accountants
303 East 11th Street = P. O. Box 2309
Anniston, Alabama 36202
{256) 237-5102 = FAX (256) 237-8185

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Anniston, Alabama

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Anniston, Alabama as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Anniston, Alabama's basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated May 20, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Anniston, Alabama’s
intemmal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Anniston, Alabama's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Anniston, Alabama’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Anniston, Alabama’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in.considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

i ¢ Agpn e, JPA -
e f%tes,’CPAs PC

Anniston, Alabama
May 20, 2015
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Kemp & Associates, CPA PC

Certified Public Accountanis
303 East 11th Street » P. O. Box 2309
Anniston, Alabama 36202
(256) 237-5102 » FAX (256) 237-8185

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Anniston, Alabama

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Anniston, Alabama’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City
of Anniston, Alabama’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2014, The City of Anniston,
Alabama’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance of the City of Anniston, Alabama's major federal program
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non- Prafit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
nencompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence about City of
Anniston, Alabama’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Anniston, Alabama’s compliance.

Opinicn on Each Major Program

In our opinion, the City of Anniston, Alabama complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal program for
the year ended September 30, 2014.



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Anniston, Alabama, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Anniston, Alabama’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purposes of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Anniston, Alabama’s internal control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal conirol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
govermnance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.

Accordingly, this report is not suited for any other purpose.

Loz i Quweiater g A

CPAs PC
Anniston, Alabama
May 20, 2015



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Pass-through

Entity
Identification
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Program Title CFDA Number Number Expenditures
LS. Department of Transportation
Passed through the Alabama Department of Transportation
2009 Airport Grant 20.106 $406.486
Tronsportation Improvement Program 20205 4976
Transportavon Improvement Program 20205 5478
Subtotal Transportation Improvement Program 10,454
Total U S. Department of Transportation 416,940
U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Award
Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 13D] 01 015 41.989
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16607 6,286
COPS Hiring Program - Recovery Act 16.71 41,099
Subtotal Direct Awards 89,374
Passed throuph the Alubama Department of Economic and
Community Affairs
Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 134,517
Subtotal Alabama Department of Economic and Community
Affairs 134,517
Fotal U S. Department of Justice 223,891
U.8, Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Awnrd
Community Development Block Grants - Recovery Act 14.253 292,847
HOME Investment Partnership Grant Program 14239 383,096
Subiotal Direct Awards 675,943
Passed through the Alabama Department of Economic and
Community AfTairs
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14231 HESG 12 014 36,315
Subiotal Alabama Department of Economic and Community
Allres 36315
Total LS. Departmemt of Housing and Urban Development 712,258
L.S. Department of Defense
Direct Award
Surplus from the Defense Reutilization and Marketing Service 12.unknown 50,000
Total U'S. Departrnent of Defense 50,000
Total Expendstures of Federnl Awards $1,403,089
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of
Anniston, Alabama (the “City™) and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.” Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the financial statements,

NOTE 2. SUBRECIPIENTS

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, disbursements were made to subrecipients of the following grant
program:

CFDA
Program Number Expenditures
Community Development Block Grant Cluster — Recovery Act 14.253 $ 59,000
Emergency Shelter Grant Program 14.231 36,315

$ 95315
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

SECTION I -SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued Uinqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Maiterial weaknesses identified? yes __X no

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? yes _ X no

Nencompliance material to financial statements noted? yes _ X no

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs: Material
weaknesses identified? yes X no

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? yes _ X no

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs Ungualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reporied yes __ X no
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Section 510(a)

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

14.239 HOME Investment Partnership Grant
Program

14.253 Community Development Block Grant

20.106 2009 Airport Grant

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X __ne
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

2014 - SECTION [I- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
None
2014 - SECTION II1 - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST

None
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SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

2013 SECTION 111 - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST
Department of Housing and Urban Development

2013-1 HOME Investment Partnership Grant Program - CFDA No. 14.239
Grant Period -~ Year ended September 30, 2013
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

Conditions: The Department of Housing and Urban Development does not list specifically what documentation should
be maintained; however, Code of Federal Regulations Title 24 — Housing and Urban Development Section 92.508 (a)
Recordkeeping states “Each participating jurisdiction must establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD
to determine whether the participating jurisdiction has met the requirements of this part.” 15 of 18 HOME loan file
were tested for documentation supporting HUD requirements, Of the 15 tested the following documentation was
missing from the loan files at the time of the fieldwork: Homeowner's Property Deed — 2 missing, Insurance - 1
missing, On-site monitoring — 3 missing, Checking for disbarment — 5 missing, bid list information - 3 missing, and
Agreement between Anniston/ Calhoun County Home Consortium and Homeowners ~ 1 missing,

Current Status: The City established checklist of required information to aid in maintaining proper documentation.
While some documents have been located, replaced, or substituted with comparable items; other items cannot be
replaced. The city has established policies and procedures to ensure that new files maintained at the office will have
the appropriate information.
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